MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDINGS LTD
Reod. Office; “11, Crooked Lane, PS. Hare Street,
Kolkata-700 8069
Email: info@mchl.co.in; Website: www.mchl.co.in
CIN: L63929WB1 500PLC048280

SHORTER NOTICE OF THIRTY FIRST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 317 Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 11, Crooked
Lane, PS. Hare Street, ¥olkata-700 0069, on Monday, the 28t December, 2020 at 04.30 P.M. to transact
the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.  Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial statements of the Company for the year ended
315t March, 2020 along with Director’s Report and Auditor's Report thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Lalit Agarwal {DIN: 00109920}, who retires by rotation in terms
of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

4. RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. DAULAT RAM AGARWALA {DIN: 00586956) AS MANAGING
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY: -

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196 read with Scheduie V of the
Companies Act, 2013 and subject to provisions of Sections 117, 197, 198, 199, 200, 2032, 203 and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 Mr. Daulat Ram Agarwal, Retiring
managing Director of the Company be and is hereby reappointed as @ Managing Director of the
- company, for a period of {5)five years with effect from 29" day of December, 2020 on the terms
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and conditions including remuneration as amended below, pertaining to increase in the overall
limit of managerial remuneration payable by the company in respect of any Financial Year from
11% to 25% of the Net Profits if the Company computed in the manner laid down in section 158
of the Companies Act, 2013. He shall have the right to manage the day-to-day business and affairs
of the Company subject to the superintendence, guidance, controf and to act as per the direction
of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Basic Salary:
Rupees 1,50,000/- per month with such increment as the Board may decide from time to time as

basic salary.
Perquisites and Amenities:

Mr. Daulat Ram Agarwal, Managing Director of the Company shall be entitled to following
perquisites and amenities:

Housing: Rent free furnished residential accommodation with free gas, electricity and water as
per company’s policy i.e.,

Leave Travel Concession: For self and family every year to anywhere in India or abroad, incurred
in accordance with the policy of the company.

Insurance premium for medical and hospitalization and Personal Accident insurance cover.
Medical Reimbursement: Reimbursement of Medical expenses incurred whether in India or
abroad for self and family including hospitalization, surgical charges, nursing charges and
domiciliary charges as per the rules of the Company.

Contribution to Provident Fund as per the policy of the Company.

Gratuity as per the policy of the Company.

Encashment of leave as per the policy of the Company.

Club Fees: Fees of Club subject to a maximum of two clubs.

Use of Car with Driver: Two cars with the Drivers with reimbursement of running and
maintenance expenses,

Telephone and Mobile facility at residence for official purposes.

Servant: Reimbursement of Servant’s salary subject to a maximum of two servants.

Watchman: Reimbursement of watchman's salary subject to a maximum of two watchmen.
Gardener: Reimbursement of Gardener’s Salary subject to a maximum of one gardener.

Other Perquisites and Amenities: Any other perquisites and/or amenities as per the policy
applicable to the senior executives of the Company and/or which may become applicable in the
future and/or any other perquisites and/or amenities as the Board may decide from time to time.
Any other one time, retirement allowances/benefits as may be decided by the Board at the time
of retirement.

For the purpose of gratuity, Provident Fund and other like benefits, if any, the services of Mr.
Daulat Ram Agarwal, Managing Director shall be considered as continuous service with the
Company from the date of his joining the Company.



Provided however that, perquisites and amenities shall be valued, wherever applicable, as per the
Income Tax Act, 1961 read with refevant rules issued thereunder.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year
during the aforesald period, the Company will pay Mr. Daulat Ram Agarwal remuneration and
perquisites not exceeding the ceiling taid down in Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, as may
be decided by the Board of Diractors.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to take such steps
and to do all other acts, deeds and things as may be necessary or desirable to give effect to this
resolution.”

5. Regularization of Mr. R. K. Bissa as the Independent Director of the Company

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 149,152,160 and all the other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Companies {Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 {including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force and Regulation 19(4) read with Part D of Schedule Il of
Securities Exchange Board of india (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations
2015, regulations, notifications & circulars of Reserve Bank of India and other applicable laws Mr.
Ramesh Kumar Bissa (DIN:00586715}), who was appointed as the Additional Independent Director
with effect from 28% March, 2020 on the Board of the Comp any pursuant to Section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013 as recommended by Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee and who
holds the office upto this Annual general Meeting and in respect of whom a notice has been
received from a member in writing along with the deposit as required under Section 160 of the
Companies Act, 2013, proposing his candidature for the office of Independent Director of the
Company, be and is hereby appointed as Independent Director of the Company, to hold office as
such for a period of Five(S) consecutive years, with effect from the date of this meeting and that
he shall not be liable to retire by rotation.” ‘

“RESOLVED FURHET THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized
severally to take such steps as may consider necessary , proper or expedient to give effect to the
aforesaid resolution.”

By Order of the Board
Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited

Registered Office:
(.Dauhl’ RamA
11, Crooked Lane, P.S. Hare Street, Daulat Ram Agarwala
Kolkata — 700069 Managing Director
CIN: L65929WB1990PLC0O48280 DIN:00586956

E-mail; info@mchl.co.in
Website: www.mchl.co.in
Date: 27/12/2020



NOTES:

1.

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is also entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. A
person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in aggregate not
more than ten percent of total share capital of the Company. A Member holding more than ten
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single
person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other persen or Member. Proxies
in order to be effective must be lodged with the Company's Registered Office at least 48 hours
before the commencement of the Meeting.

Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the Meeting
pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company a
certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their
behalf at the Meeting.

Members/ Proxies/ Authorised Representatives are requested to bring the attendance slip{s) duly
filled in for attending the AGM. Members wha hold shares in dematerialized form are requested
to write their DP 1D and Client 1D number and those who hoid shares in physical form are
requested to write their folio number on the attendance slip for attending the AGM and hand
over the duly filled attendance slip{s} at the entrance to the venue.

A statement giving additional details of the Directors seeking appointment as set out in the
Resolution in ltem Nos. 2. is annexed herewith as required under SEB! {Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and in the Explanatory Statements
are open for inspection by the Members at the Company’s Registered Office on afl working days
of the Company during business hours upto the date of the Meeting.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from 26™
December 2020 to 29" December 2020. (both days inclusive)

The Securities and Exchange Board of india {SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in
electronic form are, accordingly, requested to submit their PAN to the Depository Participants
with whom they maintain their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form should
submit their PAN to the Company.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate changes in their registered
address mentioning full address in block letters with Pin Code of the Post Office, E-mail Id, Bank
particulars and Permanent Account Number (PAN) to the Company’s Registrar and the Share
Transfer Agent and in case of members holding their shares in electronic form, this information
should be given to their Depository Participants immediately.



9.

10.

1.
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13,

14,

15.

Members desirous of making a nomination in respect of their shareholding, as permitted by
section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, are requested to write to the Registrar and Transfer Agent
of the Company for the prescribed form,

Members are requested to send their gueries, if any on the accounts or operations of the
company, to reach the Compliance Officer at the Company’s Registered Office,

Members are requested to mention their Folio Number in all their correspondence with the
Company in order to facilitate response to their queries promptly.

Members/Proxies are requested to kindly take note of the following:

(i} Copies of Annual Report wili not be distributed at the venue of the meeting.
(i} Attendance Slip, as sent herewith, is required to be produced at the venue duly filled in

and signed, for attending the meeting.
{iif} Entry to the venue will be strictly on the basis of production of duly completed and signed

Attendance Slip; and
(iv) In all correspondences with the Company and/or the R & T Agent, Folio No. must be
gquoted.

Members who are holding shares in identical order of names in more than one folio are requested
to write to the Company encfosing their share certificate to enable the Company to consolidate
their holdings in one folio.

Niche Technologies Put. Ltd. is the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company. All
investor related communication may be addressed to the following address:
Niche Technologies Pvt. 1td.

3A, AUKLAND Place, Room No. 7A & 7B,
7™ Floor, Kolkata — 700171
Phone No.: 033 22806616/6617/6618;

Email: nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs {MCA) has come out with Circular Nos. 17/2011 dated
21/04/2011 & 18/2011 dated 25/04/2011 propagating “Green Initiative” encouraging Corporates
to serve documents through electronic mode. in view of the above, shareholders are requested
to update their e-mail address with the RTA of the Company, if shares are held in physical form
and with their Depositary Participants (DP), if the shares are held in Dematerialized form.



16. Members may also note that the Notice of the 31* Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report
for 2020 will also be available on the Company’s website www.mchl.co.in for their download. The
physical copies of the aforesaid documents wiil also be available at the Company’s Registered
Office in Kolkata, West Bengal for inspection during normal business hours on working days. Even
after registering for e-communication, members are entitied to receive such communication in
physical form, upon making a request for the same, by post free of cost. For any communication,
the shareholders may also send requests to the Company’s investor email id: info@mchl.co.in.

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

Brief resume of director seeking re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting pursuant to

Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI {lListing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations,

2015,

Item No 2: Information about the Director, Lalit Agarwal

Name of the Director Mr. Lalit Agarwal
Director ldentification 00109920

Number (DIN)

Date of Birth 07/10/1960
Nationality Indian
Date of Appointment on Board 05/04/2000
i Qualification B.com {Hons)
Expertise in specific functional area He has experience and versatile knowledge

in field of Foreign Exchange Trading,
Portfolio Management, Accounts, Finance,
Security Market operations and related

activities.
Shareholding in Marda Commercial & 350000
Holdings Limited
| List of Directorships held in other Listed 1. Advance Steel Tubes Limited

Companies 2. Sophia Exports Limited




{excluding foreign, private and Section 8
Companies)

Memberships /Chairmanships of Audit and | 3-Membership
Stakeholders’ Relationship  Committees
across Public companies including Marda
Commercial & Credit Limited

1- Chairmanship

ltem No 2: Information about the Managing Director, Daulat Ram Agarwala

Name of the Director Mr. DAULAT Ram Agarwala

Director Identification 00586956

Number (DIN)

Date of Birth

Nationality Indian

Date of Appointment on Board 05/04/2000

Qualification Graduation

Expertise in specific functional area He has experience and versatile knowledge
in field of Foreign Exchange Trading,
Portfolio Management, Accounts, Finance,
Security Market operations and related
activities.

Shareholding in Marda Commercial & 350000

Holdings Limited

List of Directorships held in other Listed 1. Advance Steel Tubes Limited

Companies 2. Advance ispat India Limited

(excluding foreign, private and Section §
Companies)

Memberships /Chairmanships of Audit and | 3-Membership
Stakeholders’ Relationship  Committees
across Public companies including Marda
Commercial & Credit Limited

1- Chairmanship

Item No 2: Information about the Managing Director, Daulat Ram Agarwala




Name of the Director

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Bissa

Director Identification 00586715
Number (DIN)

Date of Birth

Nationality indian
Date of Appointment on Board 28/03/2020

Qualification

Graduation, LL.B

Expertise in specific functional area

He has experience and versatile knowledge
in field of Foreign Exchange Trading,
Portfolio Management, Accounts, Finance,
Security Market operations and related
activities.

Shareholding in Marda Commercial &
Holdings Limited

NIL

| List of Directorships held in other Listed
Companies

(excluding foreign, private and Section 8
Companies)

1. Sophia Exports Limited
2. Tirupati Structurals Limited

| Memberships /Chairmanships of Audit and
Stakeholders’ Relationship  Committees
across Public companies including Marda
Commercial & Credit Limited

3-Membership

1- Chairmanship




MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDINGS LTD
Regd. Office: “11, Crooked Lane, PS. Hare Street,
Kolkata-700 0069
Email: infoi@mchl.co.in; Website: www.mchl.co.in
CIN: L65920WRB1990PLC048280

Attendance Slip

Members attending the Meeting in person or by Proxy are requested to complete the attendance slip and
hand it over at the enfrance of the meeting venue.

Name of the Member(s) (In block letters)...........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiieiireeeen.
Name of the Proxy, if any (In block letiers)
Folio No.

DP ID* No. of Shares

Client ID*

T hereby record my presence at the 3157 Annual General Meeting of the Company at 11, Crooked Lane,
PS. Hare Street, Kolkata — 700069, on Sunday, 27/12/2020 at 04:30 pm

Signature of Shareholder...............occoiiiiiii i
Signature of Proxy.......coooviiii i
1) Only members or the Proxy holder can attend the meeting.

2) Member/Proxy Holder should bring his/ her copy of Annual Report for reference at the meeting.
* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form



MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDINGS LTD
Regd. Office: “11, Crooked Lane, PS. Hare Street,
Kolkata-700 0069
Email; info@mchl.co.in; Website: www.mchlco.in
CIN: L65929WB1990PLC048280

FORM NO. MGT 11
Proxy Form

[Pursuant td Section 105{6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3} of the Companies
{Management and Administration Rulas), 2014]

Name(s) of the Shareholder(s)

{including joint-holders, if any):

Registered address of the Shareholder(s):

Registered Folio No. /Client 1D No. /DP ID No.:

No. of equity Shares Held

i/ We being the member{s) of equity share of the above mentioned Company hereby appoint:
L NI sttt eee e et et envaness she e e et ee b eb st vne ma st en e s aranearsarnnteerenen Address:
E-mail 1d: v SIBNATUIE e Jor failing him/her
Address:
E-mail I e SIBNETUE e, OF FaHlING him/her
BN BN Bt ere e s e e ss bbb d e bbb en b e e b b s 1h bt e b at ae st Rebr s Address:

E-mait Id: oo vverninaniennens SIENALUTEL it
As my / our proxy to attend and vote {on a poli) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 30™ Annual General
Meeting of the Company, to be held at Mercantile Building, 11, Crooked Lane, PS. Hare Street, Kolkata —

700068, on Sunday, 27" December, 2020 at 04:30 PM. In respect of the such resolutions as are indicated
below:

{ wish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below:



Resolution | Resolutions For Against
No.
ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. Ordinary Resolution to be passed to receive and adopt
the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year
ended 31 March, 2019 along with Director’s and
Auditor’s report thereon.
2, Ordinary Resolution te appoint a Director in place of Mr.
Lalit Agarwal {DIN: 00109920), who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
3. Special Resolution for Continuation of Managing
Director Shri Daulat Ram Agarwala
4, Ordinary Resolution for Regularisation of Independent
Director
Signed this day of 2019 Affix
Signature of Shareholder: Revenue
Signature of Proxy hoider: Stamp

Note:

The Proxy Form signed across revenue stamp should reach the Registered Office of the Company at least

48 hours before the scheduled time of Meeting.

For the Resolutions, explanatory statements and notes please refer to the Notice of the 30" Annual
General Meeting

* This is only optional. Please put ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the
Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or alf the resolutions, your proxy wili

entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.




EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEM NO 4:

Mr. Daulat Ram Agarwala was re-appointed as Managing Director as per the provisions of Sec ons 196, 197,
198, 203 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder
(including any statutory modifi cation or re-enactment thereof) read with Schedule- V of the Companies Act,
2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 27th
December, 2020 on the recommendation of nomination and remuneration commitlee He holds office up Lo
the date of this ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Board feels that presence of Mr. Daulat Ram Agarwala on the Board is desirable and would be beneficial
to the company and hence recommend resolution No. 4 for adoption.

Mr. Daulat Ram Agarwala will be paid remuneration by way of salary Rs. 1,50,000 Per Month for the services
that he will render as Managing Director. Mr. Daulat Ram Agarwala will discharge all duties and responsibility
as is normally done by a person of his designation in other organization.

The Board commends the Special Resolution set out at Iltem No.4 of the Notice for approval by the Members.

Mr. Daulat Ram Agarwala is interested in the Resolution mentioned at Iltem No. 5 of the Notice with regard
to his appointment, Other than Mr. Daulat Ram Agarwala no other Director, Key Managerial Personnel or
their respective relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the Resolution mentioned

at item No. 4 of the Notice.

Except Mr. Daulat Ram Agarwala and his relatives none of the other Directors / Key Managerial
Personne! of the Company or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, in the said
resolutions.

ITEM NO. 5:

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Bissa, on recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee was
appointed as the Additional Director with effect from 28% March, 2020, by the Board in accordance
with the Article of Association and section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013. Mr, R.K. Bissa holds
upto the date of this ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has received the requisite
notice in writing under section 160 of the Act along with the requisite amount. Mr. R.K. Bissa
possesses requisite knowledge, skills and experience for the position of Independent Director.

The Board feels that presence of Mr, RK Bissa on the Board is desirable and would be beneficial to
the company and hence recommend resolution No. 5 for adoption.

The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set out at item No.4 of the Notice for approval by
the Members,

Ms. Ramesh Kumar Bissa is interested in the Resolution mentioned at item No. 5 of the Notice with
regard to his appointment. Other than Mr. RK Bissa, no other Director, Key Managerial Personnel
or their respective relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise

in the Resolution mentioned at Item No. 5 of the Notice.
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Attendance Slip

.embers attending the Meeting in person or by Proxy are requested to complete the attendance slip and hand if over at the entrance ¢

ame of the Member(s) (In block letters) .......ooviiiiiiiiiiiiiee e,
ame of the Proxy, if any (In block Tetters) .......ocoiiiiiiviiiiiiiiiii e

DP Folio
ID* No.
Client No. of
ID* Shares

1ereby record my presence at the 31* Annual General Meeting of the Company at 11, Crooked Lane, PS. Hare Street, Kolkata — 701
gnature of Shareholder. ...

gnature 0f ProXy.. ...

-Only members or the Proxy holder can attend the meeting,

 Member/Proxy Holder should bring his/ her copy of Annual Report for reference at the meeting.
Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form



FORM NO. MGT 11
Proxy Form
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
{Management and Administration Rules), 2014]
Name(s) of the Shareholder(s)
(including joint-holders, if any):
Registered address of the Shareholder(s):

Registered Folio No. /Client ID No. /DP ID No.:
No. of equity Shares Held
I/ We being the member(s) of equity share of the above mentioned Company hereby appoint:

AQAIESE: L.t e et et
Emailld: ..o, SIgnature: . ....oviiiiiiiien i eeeeeens Jor failing him/her

P =1 PSPPSRI

As my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 31% Annual General
Meeting of the Company, to be held at Mercantile Building, 11, Crooked Lane, PS. Hare Street, Kolkata —
700069, on Monday, the 28" December, 2020 at 4.30 P.M. In respect of the such resolutions as are
indicated below:

1 wish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below:

Resolution | Resolutions For Against
No,

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Ordinary Resolution to be passed to receive and adopt

the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended
31% March, 2020 along with Director’s and Auditor’s
report thereon. _

2. Ordinary Resolution to appoint a Director in place of Mr.
Lalit Agarwal (DIN: 00109920), who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. Special Resolution to Re-appoint Mr. Daulat Ram
Agarwal as Managing Director with change in
remuneration.
14 Ordinary Resolution for Regularization Mr. Ramesh

Kumar Bissa as Independent Director

Signed this day of 2020 Affix

Signature of Shareholder: Revenue

Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder:




Note:
The Proxy Form signed across revenue stamp should reach the Registered Office of the Company at least

48 hours before the scheduled time of Meeting.

For the Resolutions, explanatory statements and notes please refer to the Notice of the 31° Annual General
Meeting

* This is only optional. Please put ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the
Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your proxy will
have entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.



ROUTE MAP TO AGM VENUE OF MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Mcmbers,

Your directors have pleasure in presenting their 3 1% Annual Report on the business and operations
of Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together with the audited Statement
of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

Financial Highlights
During the year under review, performance of your company as under:

(in 2)
Financial Result Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Total Revenue . 2,00,08,601 2,18,16,493
{ Total expenses 1,66,74,852 1,42,02,555
{ Profit /(Loss} Before Tax 17,41,257 16,62,594
Less: Tux Expenses (41,667) 11,92,958
Profit /(Loss) After Tax 33,75,416 64,20,980
Transfers to Statutory Reserve 15,30,007 30,78,950
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 30,24, 23,475 29,63,03,446

Operating & Financial Performance
Gross revenues decreased to Rs. 2,00,08,601/- against Rs, 2,18,16,493/- in the previous year. Profit
before taxation was Rs. 33,33,749/- against Rs 76,13,938/- in the previous year.

Material Changes & Commitinents
No material changes and commitments have occurred from the date of closure of the financial year
till the date of this Report, which affected the financial position of the Company.

Dividend
With the view to conserve the resources of the company your directors regret to recommend no

dividend for the period under review.

Transfer to Reserves
Your Directors propose no amount to transfer the General Reserves.

Change in the nature of business, if any
There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company.




Statutory & Legal Matters
There has been no significant and/or material order(s) passed by any Regulators/Courts/Tribunals

impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future.

Financial Liguidity

Cash and cash equivalent as on March 31, 2020 was = 2,43,00,810/- (previous year was =
9,19,177/-). The Company’s working capital management is based on a well-organized process of
continuous monitoring and controls.

Internal Financial Control
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in
the design or operation were observed.

Subsidiary / Joint Ventures / Associates

The Company had no subsidiary or Associate Company during the financial year. In accordance
with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company was not required 10 prepare a
consolidated financial staterent as a part of the Annual Report. In accordance with third proviso
of Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report of the Company, containing
therein its standalone financial statement has been placed on the website of the Company

www.mchl.co.in,

Share Capital
The paid up Equity Share Capital as on March 31, 2020 was Rs. 10,00,06,00. During the year

under review the company has not issued any shares or any convertible instruments.

Deposits
The Company being a Non deposit taking NBFC has not accepted any public deposits and as such,

no amount on account of principal or interest on public deposits was outstanding as on the date of

the balance sheet.
The Company has not accepted deposits from the public falling within the ambit of Section 73 of

the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder.

Risk Management
Although the company has long been following the principle of risk minimization as the norm in

every industry, it has now become a compulsion. The Board members were informed about risk
assessment and after which the Board formally adopted and implemented the necessary steps for
monitoring the risk management plan for the company.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 Mr. Lalit Agarwal (DIN: 00109920), Director

of the Company retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.




Key Managerial personnel’s
The Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of the Company as on 31% March, 2020 in accordance
with the provisions of section 2(51) and section 203 of the Companies Act,2013 read with the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,2014 (Including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) for the time being in force) are as follows:

S. | f

No. Name of KMPs Designation

l. Mr DaulatRam Agarwala  Managing Director
2. Mr. Aashish Agarwal _ Chief Financial Officer _
3. ng Puja__Maﬁtri_ _ _ §C0mp§ﬁif§éeretary_

Declaration by Independent Director(s)

The Board of Directors hereby certifies that the Independent Directors appointed on the Board
meeting the criteria pursuant to Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Further, all Independent Directors have furnished their Declarations meeting the criteria under
Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 SEBI (Listing and Disclosure

Requirement) Regulations, 2015.

Meetings of Board
During the Financial Year 2019-2020 Nine (9) meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company

were held. The details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening
gap between the Board Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

Board Induction, Training and Familiarization programme for Independent Directors

At the time of appointment of the Director, a formal letter of appointment is given to him which
inter-alia explains the role, functions, and responsibilities expected of him as a Director of the
Company. The Director is also explained in detail the various compliances required from him as a
Director under the various provisions of the Companies Act 2013, Regulation 25 SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2011, the Code of Conduct of the Company and other relevant regulations. The
Director, upon appointment, is formally inducted to the Board. In order to familiarize the
Independent Directors about the business drivers, they are updated through presentations at Board
Meetings about the Financials of the company and also about the new product launches. They are
also provided booklets about the business and operations of the company.

Remuneration Policy
The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a

policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and to fix their




remuneration. The Company’s Remuncration Policy is available on the Company's website at
www.mchl.co.in and forms a part of this Report of the Directors as Annexure -1

Directors' Responsibility Statement

The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for ensuring compliance with the
provisions of section 134(3)(c) read with section 134(5) of the Companies Act, for the year ended
on 31.03.2020 and state that:

(1) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

(ii) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit
and loss of the Company for that period;

(iii)the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(tv)the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(v) the directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

(vi) The directors have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Related Party Transactions

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s
length basis and in the ordinary course of business. There are no material significant related party
transactions made by the Company during the year that would have required shareholder approval
under Regulation 23 SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015.
All related party transactions are reported to the Audit Committee. Prior approval of the Audit
Committee is obtained on a yearly basis for the transactions which are planned and/ or repetitive
in nature and omnibus approvals are taken within limits laid down for unforeseen transactions. The
disclosure under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable. The Policy on Related Party transactions as
approved by the Board has been uploaded on the Company’s Website and may be accessed at the
link:

http://'www.mchl.co.in/policy/DOC_169090.MARDA_RPT-policy 2015.pdf

The details of the transactions with related parties during 2019-2020 are provided in the
accompanying financial statements.

None of the Directors had any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company during the
year under review.



Performance Evaluation
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of your Company has formulated and laid down

criteria for performance Evaluation of the Board (including Committees) and every director (including
Independent Directors and Chairman & Managing Director) pursuant to provision of Section 134, Section
149 read with Code of Independent Directors(Schedule iv)and section 178 of the companies Act,2013 and
Regulation 19(4) read with Part D of schedule II of SEBI Listing Regulations,2015 covering inter-alia the
following parameters namely:

1. Board Evaluation- degree of fulfillment of key responsibilities; Board culture and dynamics

2. Board Committee Evaluation-effectiveness of meetings committee dynamics.

3. Individual Director Evaluation (including 1Ds)-contribution at Board Meetings.

Further, the Chairman and Managing Director is evaluated on key aspects of the role which includes inter-
alia effective leadership to the Board and adequate guidance to the CEOs

Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 SEBI (Listing and
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out annual performance
evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the
working of its Commitiees.

Whistleblower Mechanism
Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of

business operations and in order to maintain these standards, the Company encourages ifs
employees who have genuine concerns about suspected misconduct to come forward and express
these concerns without fear of punishment or unfair treatment. The Company has a strong and
effective Whistleblower Policy which aims to deter and detect actual or suspected misconduct.
This mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who
avail of the mechanism. Any employee may report such incident without fear to the Vigilance
Officer or alternatively to the Chairman of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is empowered to monitor the functioning of the mechanism. It reviews the
status of complaints received under this policy. The Committee has, in its Report, affirmed that no
personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee. The details of whistle blower policy
is posted on the website of the Company and can be accessed at www.mchl.co.in

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Net worth of the Company was below Rs. 500 Crore, the Turnover of the company was below
Rs. 1000 Crore and the Net Profit of the Company was below Rs. 5 crore in any of the preceding
three financial year, hence, provisions of section 135(1) of the Companies Act 2013 read with CSR
rules 2014 issued in this behalf are not attracted on the Company.

Listing
The shares of the Company are listed on The Caleutta Stock Exchange Limited. The Company's
shares are compulsorily traded in the dematerialized form. The ISIN allotted is INE912C01014.



Statutory Audit

M/s Nagar Goel & Chawala, Chartered Accountants have been appointed as statutory auditors of
the Company till the conclusion of 33rd AGM of the Company. The said firm has given its consent
and declared that they are not disqualified to be appointed as statutory auditors.

Report of M/s Nagar Goel & Chawala, Chartered Accountants, and statutory auditor’s Report does
not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks. The Auditor’s Report is enclosed
with the financial statements in this Annual Report.

Corporate Governance
Report on Corporate Governance along with the Certificate thereon as obtained from Yashwant

Gupta & Associates, as required by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulation, 2015, is enclosed as Annexure- II to the Board’s report.

Secretarial Audit
M/s. Yashawant Gupta & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary was appointed to conduct the

secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year 2019-2020, as required under Section 204
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014,

In terms of the provisions of Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 a Secretarial Audit Report
in Form MR-3 given by Secretarial Auditor is annexed to this Report (Annexure- ITI),

The Report confirms that the Company had complied with the statutory provision listed under
Form MR-3 and the Company also has proper board processes and compliance mechanism. The
Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Board Induction, Training and Familiarization programme for Independent Directors

At the time of appointment of the Director, a formal letter of appointment is given to him which
inter-alia explains the role, functions, and responsibilities expected of him as a Director of the
Company. The Director is also explained in detail the various compliances required from him as a
Director under the various provisions of the Companies Act 2013, Regulation 25 SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2011, the Code of Conduct of the Company and other relevant regulations.

The Director, upon appointment, is formally inducted to the Board. In order to familiarize the
Independent Directors about the business drivers, they are updated through presentations at Board
Meetings about the Financials of the company and also about the companies background They are
also provided booklets about the business and operations of the company.

The Directors are also updated on the changes in relevant corporate laws relating to their roles and
responsibilities as Directors.




Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the Members of
the Board and all employees in the course of day to day business operations of the company. The
code laid down by the Board is known as “Code of Business Conduct” which forms an Appendix
to the Code. The Code has been posted on the Company’s website www.mchl.co.in.

All the Board Members, the Senior Management personnel and personnel one level below the
Board have confirmed compliance with the Code. All Management Staff were given appropriate

training in this regard.

Loans, guarantees and investments

The Company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013.The detail of the investments made by the Company are given in the
notes to the financial statements.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption

Since the Company does not own any manufacturing facility, being an Investment Company, the
particulars relating to conservation of energy and technology absorption stipulated in the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable.

Foreign Exchange Earning and Qutgo

There is no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review.

Extract of Annual Return
The extract of Annual Return as for the financial year 2019-2020 in Form No. MGT-9 as required

under Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014 is set out as an annexure to this Report. (Annexure IV),

Managerial Remuneration

The information required pursuant to Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(1) of The Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees
of the Company is attached here as Annexure V and forms a part of the Directors® Report.

There are no employees who are in receipt of remuneration in excess of the limit specified under
section 134(3) (q) read with Rule 5 (2) and 5 (3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

RBI Guidelines for Non-Banking Financial Companies
The Company has observed all the prudential norms prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India. The

Schedule as required in terms of Paragraph 13 of Non-Banking Financial Companies Prudential
Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015 is annexed with the financial statements.

Provisions of Sexual Harassment

The provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the work place (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013 is not attracted on the Company, However the Company has a voluntary
policy towards Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women employees of the Company and has




set up a mechanism for registering and prompt Redressal of complaints received from ail
permanent and temporary employees and staffs.

Cautionary Note

The statements forming part of the Director’s Report may contain certain forward looking remarks
within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations, Many factors could cause the
actual results, performances or achievements of the Company to be materially different from any
future results, performances or achievements that may be expressed or implied by such forward
looking statement

General Disclosures
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as
there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:

* Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

* Issue of Sweat equity shares.

*  Your Company does not have any scheme of provision of money for the purchase of its

own shares by employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees.
* There was no revision in the Financial Statements.
* There was no change in the nature of business.
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Daulat Ram Agarwal Lalit Agarwal
Managing Director Director
(DIN 00586956) (DIN 00109920)

Place: Kolkata
Date: 27/12/2020



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

INDUSTRY TREND AND DEVELOPMENT

India's economic growth is estimated to slowed tremendously in the current fiscal year as compared to last
years, as an impact of the deadly pandemic COVID-19. However, acceleration in growth is conditional to
the development of social and economic conditions of the Country. Moreover, with the banking system
clearly constrained in terms of expanding their lending activities, the role of NBFCs becomes even more
important now, especially when the government has a strong focus on promoting entrepreneurship so that
India can emerge as a country of job creators instead of being one of job seekers. Innovation and
diversification are the important contributors to achieve the desired objective. The Company’s principal
business being investment in shares and securities, the Company looks forward to increased activities in
this segment. However, the Management will continue to review the business strategy from time to time
depending on the changes in the policy of Government and Reserve Bank of India. During the year under
review favorable conditions prevailed in the market which have been reflected in the profitability of the

Company.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

With the positive attitude of the Government and RBI it appears that new opportunities may open up for
sustained growth of Investment Companies. However, the Management is not complacent about the future
growth of the Company and constantly reviews the ups and downs of the market particularly bearing in
mind that the Company is a small sized NBFC and there are plenty of obstacles which may hinder its

growth.

In the past few years, the increased competition from banks in the retail finance segment has led to excess
diversification by NBFCS from their core business activities. The sector has witnessed introduction of
various innovative products such as used vehicles financing, small personal loans, three-wheeler financing,
IPO financing, finance for tyres & fuel, asset management, mutual fund distribution and insurance advisory,
etc. Besides, NBFCs are aspiring to emerge as a one-stop shop for all financial services

OUTLOOK

As earlier stated, not only World Bank but other authorities also appear to be optimistic about the
growth potential of India’s economy. The financial results of the year under review have improved
and it is expected that the current year may produce even better results barring unforeseen

circumstances.

Your company is fully aware that the opportunities in the infrastructure and real estate will be
many and diverse in nature. While this provides impetus for our sustainable growth, your company
is also duly careful that amongst the multiple choices of attractive businesses available we always
make the right choice. Your company’s business model and its risk management policies and
mechanism are being constantly reviewed and upgraded to ensure this.



RISK AND CONCERN

As stated earlier, the Company’s business is very much dependent on economic and fiscal policies
of the Government and RBI1. The Management critically examines the ups and downs of the Market
and this is a matter of constant concern for the Management. The business strategy needs to be
reviewed and corrected suitably to meet the changed situation.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THERE ADEQUECY

The Company has proper and adequate system of internal control to ensure that all assets are
safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that transactions
are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. The Company has effective system in place for
achieving efficiency in operations, optimum and affective utilization of resources, monitoring
thereof and compliance with applicable laws. Comprehensive audit of functional areas and
operations of the Company are undertaken to examine the adequacy of and compliance with
policies, plans and statutory requirements. Significant observations and follow up actions thereon
are reported to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee reviews adequacy and effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control environment and monitors the implementation of audit
recommendations.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors comprising Independent Directors also review the
system at regular intervals.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENTS

The Company continues to be a Non Deposit Taking, systemically not important, Non CIC Non-
Banking Financial Company and holds the RBI certificate in this behalf. The company has
followed the RBI Norms as applicable and has complied with all the statutory obligations.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

The Company continues to give priority to its human assets. The Company provides a fair and
equitable work environment to all its employees. The Company is working continuously to create
and nurture an atmosphere which is highly motivated and result oriented.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCE / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
FRONT INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED

The Management maintains a healthy relationship with its employees at all levels. However, the
number of employees in the company is low but with the positive growth of operations, the
management believes the employee base to grow.



CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements made in this Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s current
position and expectations for the future may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning
of the applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ substantially or materially from
those expressed or implied. Important developments that could affect the Company’s operation
include the downtrend in the industry — global or domestic or both, significant changes in political
and economic environment in India.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited

Sd/-
Daulat Ram Agarwala
Managing Director
(DIN 00586956)
Place: Kolkata
Date: 27/12/2020



ANNEXURE--I

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY
of
Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited

INTRODUCTION

The Company considers human resources as its invaluable asseis. This policy on nomination &
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and other employees has been
formulated in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the listing agreement in
order to pay equitable remuneration to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and
employees of the Company and to harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent with
the goals of the Company.

OBJECTIVE

The Key Objectives of the Committee would be:

a) To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.

b) To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to
the Board for further evaluation.

¢) To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.

DEFINITIONS

> “Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.
» “Company” means “Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited”

» “Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies
Act, 2013,

» “Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) means
(1) CEO or the Managing Director or the Manager
(i)  Company Secretary
(i)  Whole-time Director
(ivy CFO
{v) Such other officer as may be prescribed



“Nomination and Remuneration Committee” shall mean a Committee of Board of
Directors of the Company, constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement.

“Policy or This Policy” means, “Nomination and Remuneration Policy.”

“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for
services rendered by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act,
1961.

“Senior Management” means personnel of the Company who are members of its core
management team excluding Board of Directors. This would include all members of
management one level below the Executive Directors, including all the functional heads.

POLICY FOR APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS, KMPs AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Appointment criteria and qualifications:

1.

The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and
experience of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level
and recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position
he / she is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether
qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person are sufficient / satisfactory
for the concerned position.

Term / Tenure:

1.

Managing Director/Whole-time Director/Manager (Managerial Person): - The Company
shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managerial Person for a term not exceeding
five years at a time.

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the
Board of the Company and will be eligible for re- appointment on passing of a special
resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report. No
Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such
Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing
to become an Independent Director.

A whole-time KMP of the Company shall not hold office in more than one Company except
in its subsidiary company at the same time.



Evaluation:
The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior

Management at regular interval.

POLICY RELATING TO REMUNERATION FOR DIRECTORS, KMPs AND OTHER
EMPLOYEES

General

1. The remuneration/compensation/commission ete. to the Directors will be determined by the
Committee and recommended to the Board for approval.

2. The remuneration & commission paid to the Managing Director shall be in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made there under.

Remuneration to Non-Executive/Independent Directors

The remuneration payable to each Non-Executive Director is based on the remuneration structure
as determined by the Board, and is revised from time to time, depending on individual contribution,
the Company’s performance, and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
there under.

DEVIATIONS FROM THIS POLICY

Deviations on elements of this policy in extraordinary circumstances, when deemed necessary in
the interests of the Company, will be made if there are specific reasons to do so in an individual
case



ANNEXURE-I1

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31, 2020.

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERANCE

Your Company is always committed to good Corporate Governance and application of best
management practices for safeguarding the interest of all stakeholders. Strict adherence to the
principles of fairness, transparency, professionalism, accountability and propriety in total
functioning of the Company, are pre-requisites for attaining sustainable growth in this competitive
corporate world. Your company seeks to focus on regulatory compliances, complying with all the
provisions of Listing Agreement and applicable Corporate Governance Norms with all the
modifications within the prescribed time, thereby giving stress on essential pre-requisites of
corporate governance.

A Report on compliance with the principles of Corporate Governance as prescribed in The
Securities and Exchange Beard of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as “SEBI Regulations™) is given below:

ETHICS POLICIES

We strive to conduct our business and strengthen our relationships in a manner that is dignified,
distinctive and responsible. Therefore, we have adopted various codes and policies to carry out our
duties in an ethical manner. Some of these codes and policies are:

¢ Code for Board of Directors and Board Committecs
¢ Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors / Management Personnel
¢ Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (BOARD)

Introduction

In keeping with the commitment of the management for the principle of integrity and transparency
in business opcrations for good corporate governance, the Company’s policy is to have an
appropriate blend of executive and independent directors to maintain the independence of the
Board. The main role of Board is to take right decision to safeguard and enhance shareholders
value. The Board periodically evaluates the need for change in its composition and size and selects
members to fill Board vacancies and nominating candidates for election by the members at the
Annual General Meeting. '



Comnmposition

As on 31st March, 2020 the Company’s Board comprised of four directors out of which one is
Managing Director, one is Non-Executive Director, one woman Non - Executive Independent
Director one Non - Executive Independent Directors. Management of the Company is headed by
Sri Daulat Ram Agarwala, Managing Director, subject to general supervision, control and direction

of the Board.

The composition of the Board is in conformity with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Reg. 17 of SEBI Listing Regulations.

The details of attendance of the Directors at the Board Meeting during the year and at the last Annual
General Meeting held on 28" September, 2019 and also the number of other directorships,
committee memberships/chairmanships as on 31st March 2020, and the date of joining is given
below. All the Directors are compliant with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Act™) and “SEBI Regulations” in this regard:

Name of the Category | Relation | Financial Year 2019- | Attend | Number of No. of Committee
Directors & ship with 2020 ance Directorshi Positions held in other
i DIN Ne. other at the | p(s) held in Public Limited
Director Last India public Companies **
$ AGM | listed
companies
Board | Board (including Chairman | Member
Meeting | Meeting Marda .
held attended Commercial
during & Holdings
the Limited)*
tenure of
directors
hip
| Mr. Daulat Managing —ee 9 9 No 01 NIL NIL
Ram Director
Agarwala
(DIN:
00586956)
Mr. Lalit Non- | e 9 9 No 03 03 3
Agarwal Executive
(DIN: Director
00109920)
{ Mr. Ashok Non- | e 3 3 Yes 01 00 03
Kumar Gupta | Executive
{DIN: Independe
00532083) nt Director
Ms Kamlesh Non- R B 5 5 Yes 01 NIIL. NIL
Gupta Executive
(DIN: Independe
07243 &)ﬁ) nt Director




* Excludes Directorship in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, Companies under
Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Alternate Directorship.

*% Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee have been considered.

None of the Directors on the Board is a member in more than ten Board-level Statutory Committees

or Chairman of more than five such Commitices.

All Independent Directors have confirmed their Independence to the Company.

The Non- Executive Directors have no pecuniary relationship for transactions with the Company
in their personal capacity.

Board Meetings

A calendar of Board and Committee Meetings is agreed and circulated in advance to the
Directors, Additional meetings are held, when necessary. During the year ended 31 March
2020, Nine (9) Board meetings were held on 30" May 2019, 14% August, 2019, 3%
September, 2019, 30% September, 2019, 14% November, 2019, 237 December, 2019, 20™
January 2020 and 14" February 2020 and 28% March, 2020. The gap between any two
consecutive meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days.

Board Agenda

The meetings of the Board are governed by a structured agenda. The agenda papers are circulated
in advance before each meeting to all the Directors. All Board members have access to accurate,
relevant and timely information to fulfill their responsibilities. The Board members in consultation
with the Chairman may bring up other matters for consideration at the Board Meetings.

Information placed before the Board

Necessary information as required under the Companies Act and the Listing Agreement/SEBI
Listing Regulations as applicable have been placed before and reviewed by the Board from time
to time. The Board also periodically reviews compliance by the Company with the applicable
laws/statutory requirements concerning the business and affairs of the Company.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMMES FOR BOARD MEMBERS

The Board members are provided with necessary documents, reports and internal policies to enable
them to familiarize with the Company’s procedures and practices. Periodic presentations are made
at the Board and Board Committee Meetings, on business and performance updates of the
Company, global business environment, business strategy and risks involved. Detailed
presentations on the Company’s business segments were made at the separate meetings of the
Independent Directors held during the year. The details of such familiarization programmers for
Independent Directors are posted on the website of the Company and can be accessed at
www.mchl.co.in




CODE AND POLICIES

The Board has adopted all applicable codes and policies as per the requirement of the Companies
Act, 2013, SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and the Listing
Agreement/SEBI Listing Regulations. The requisite codes and policies are posted on the
Company’s website at www.mchl.co.in and references to these codes and policies have been given
elsewhere in this Report.

CODES OF CONDUCT

As a member of the Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited, the Company had adopted Marda
Code of Ethics as the Code of Conduct for all its employees including its Whole-time Directors.
Marda Code of Ethics anchors ethical and legal behavior within the organization. The Board of
Directors laid down a separate Code for the Non-Executive Directors of the Company. The
aforesaid Codes are available on the Company’s website at
http://www.mehl.co.in/code_conduct.php. All Directors and Senior Management personnel of
the Company as on 315t March, 2020 have individually affirmed their compliance with the
applicable Code of Conduct. A declaration signed by the Managing Director to this effect is
enclosed at the end of this report. The Code of Conduct for the Non-Executive Directors is in line
with the provisions of Section 149(8) and Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and contains
brief guidance for professional conduct by the Non-Executive Independent Directors.

During the year, pursuant to the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the
Board of the Company formulated the Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information to ensure timely and adequate disclosure of price
sensitive information to the Stock Exchange(s). The same is also posted on the website of the

Company at www.inchl.co.in.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

As on 31st March 2020, the Company had three committees of the Board of Directors ~ Audit

Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

The minutes of all Board and Committee Meetings are placed before the Board and noted by the
Directors at the Board Meetings. The role, composition and terms of reference of Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee
including the number of meetings held during the year ended and the related attendance are as

follows:;



AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Commitiee acts as a link between the management, auditors and the Board of Directors of the
Company and has full access to financial information.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as per the guidelines set out in the Listing
Regulation with the Stock Exchanges read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

As on 31st March, 2020 the Audit Committee comprised of two Independent Directors and one
Non-Executive Director. Mr. Ramesh Kumar Bissa is the Chairman and Mr. Lalit Agarwal &
Mrs. Kamlesh Gupta are the other two members of the Committee. All the members of the
Committee have accounting or related financial management expertise.

During the year under review, five meetings of the committee were held on 30.05.2019,
14.08.2019, 14.11.2019, 14.02.2020 and 28.03.2020. The composition of the committee and
attendance at its meeting is given below:

Name of the Director Category No. of No. of
Mectings Meetings
held Attended

Mrs. Kamlesh Gupta Chairman-Non-Executive 5 5

Independent Director
Mr. Lalit Agarwal Non-Executive Director 5 5
| Mr. Ashok Kumar Gupta’ Non-Executive Independent 3 3
Director

Ms. Puja Mantri, Company Secretary is the secretary to the Committee.
The representatives of Statutory Auditors are permanent invitees to the Audit Committee Meeting.

Mrs. Kamlesh Gupta, the Chairman was duly present in Annual General Meeting held on
September 27, 2018.

All the meetings were held in such time that the gap between any two meetings did not exceed
four months; thereby complying with the Companies Act, 2013.

The Committee acts as a link between the management, auditors and the Board of Directors of the
Company and has full access to financial information.

The functions of the Committee include:

1. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Statutory
Auditors of the company;

3. Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by them;



4.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.
15.

16.

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report
thereon before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:
»  Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be
included in the Board’s report in terms of clause (c¢) of sub-section 3 of section 134
of the Companies Act, 201 3;
= Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;
*  Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by

management;

» Significant adjustmenis made in the financial statements arising out of audit
findings;

* Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial
statements;

* Disclosure of any related party transactions;

» Qualifications in the draft Audit Report;
Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to
the board for approval;
Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds
utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and
the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a
public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up
steps in this matter;
Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness
of audit process;
Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related
parties;
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;
Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems,
Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory auditor internal adequacy of
the internal control systems;
Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;
Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;
Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the Internal Auditors into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
material nature and reporting the matter to the board;
Discussion with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope
of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern,



17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

18. To review the functioning of the Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Mechanism;

19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person
heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit
Commitiee.

21. Regulating Internal Financial Control system.

22. Reviewing the following information:

* Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of
operations;

» Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit
Committee), submitted by management;

» Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory
auditors;

= Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses.

" Reviewing the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief
internal auditor.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As on 31st March, 2020 the Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprised of three Non-
Executive Directors out of which two are Independent Directors. Mr. Lalit Agarwal is the
Chairman and Mr. Ramesh Kumar Bissa & Mrs, Kamlesh Gupta are the other two members of the
Committee.

The Committee had its meeting on 3 September, 2019 where the committee discussed about the
policy of the remuneration and decided to continue with the same.

Mr. Lalit Agarwal, Chairman of the Comumittee attended the Annual General Meeting held on
September 28, 2019.

The composition of the committee and attendance at its meeting is given below:

Name of the Director Category |No. of No. of
|Meetings Meetings
. |Held Attended
Mr. Lalit Agarwal Chairman-Non-Executive 1 1
Director
Mirs. Kamlesh Gupta Non-Executive-Independent 1 1
Director




Mr. Ashok Kumar Gupta Non-Executive Independent I 1
Director

Terms of Reference of the Committee, inter alia, includes the following:

To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down and to recommend to the Board their
appointment and/or removal

To carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance

To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a Director, and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees

To formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board

To devise a policy on Board diversity

To recommend/review remuneration of the Managing Director(s) and Whole-time Director(s)
based on their performance and defined assessment criteria.

Shares held by the Directors as on 31% March, 2020

| Name of the Director Category No. of Equity Shares held
Mr. Daulat Ram Agarwala Managing Director 512500
Mr. Lalit Agarwal Non- Executive Director 350000
Mr. Ramesh Kumar Bissa Independent -

| Ms Kamlesh Gupta Independent -

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

During the year under review, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprised of three
Directors. The present Members of the Committee are Mr. Ramesh Kumar Bissa, Chairman Mrs.
Kamlesh Gupta and Mr. Lalit Agarwal.

Ms. Puja Mantri, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

The Committee held one meeting during on 14" November, 2019.

The composition of the committee and attendance at its meeting is given below:

Name of the Director |Category INo. of No. of
{Meetings Meetings
Held Attended
Mrs. Kamlesh Gupta Chairman-Non-Executive 1 1
Independent Director




Mr. Lalit Agarwal Non-Executive Director 1 1

Mr. Ashok Kumar Gupta Non-Executive Independent 1 1
Director

Terms of Reference of the Commitiee, inter alia, includes the following:

*  To approve all transfers (including transmission, transposition, remat) requests received.

e Toreview action taken on sharcholders’ grievances and to advise if any further action is to be
taken.

¢ To ensure that correspondence with the shareholders are promptly dealt with by the Company
and no cases were pending as on 3 1st March, 2020.

Shares received for transfer are processed promptly, approved by the Committee and ratified at the
following Board Meeting.

The Company did not receive any complaint from any shareholder during the year and no
complaint was pending as on 31.03.2020.

Pursuant to Listing Agreement the Company has opened email-id info@mchl.co.in for Grievance
Redressal purpose where complaint can be lodged by the Shareholders.

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

During the year 2019-2020, as per the requirement of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Listing Agreement/SEBI Listing Regulations, one separate meeting of Independent
Directors was held on 23" December, 2019 which was attended by all the Independent Directors.

Mrs. Kamlesh Gupta was elected as the Lead Independent Director. In the meeting, the Directors
reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole and further
reviewed the performance of the Chairperson of the company taking into account the views of
Executive Directors and Non-Executives Director and assessed the quality, quantity and the
timeliness of flow of information between the Management and the Board.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

The Company has no subsidiary during the financial year.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

The Company has designated Ms. Puja Mantri, Company Secretary of the Company as
Compliance Officer.

Ms. Puja Mantri, Company Secretary
Address: 11, Crooked Lane, First Floor, Room No. 7, P.S.- Hare Street,



Kolkata, West Bengal-700069
Phone Nos.: (033) 2248-5664
Fax : (033) 2243-9601

Email: info@mchl.co.in
Website: www.mchl.co.in

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Provision of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 i.e. Corporate Social Responsibility is not
applicable to the company as it does not have the requisite net worth, turnover or net profit as laid
down by the said section as on 31st March, 2020.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

The location and time of the last three Annual General Meetings and special resolutions
passed thercin are as follows:

For the year ended Location ' Date Time | Special
resolutions
transacted

| March 31, 2019 11, Crooked Lane, First Floor, | 28.09.2019 | 11.00 None
Room No. 7, P.S.- Hare Street, AM.
Kolkata, West Bengal-700069 '

| March 31,2018 11, Crooked Lane, First Floor, | 27.09.2018 | 11.00 None
Room No. 7, P.S.- Hare Street, AM

Kolkata, West Bengal-700069

March 31,2017 Mercantile Building, Block-E, | 23.09.2017 | 11.00 None
2nd Floor, 9/12, Lal-bazar AM
, Street, Kolkata-700001
Note: i) No resolution was required to be passed through Postal Ballot.

ii) No Extra -Ordinary General Meeting was held during the year under report.

DISCL.OSURES

1) The financial statements are prepared following the Accounting Standards issued by the
Institute Of Chartered Accountants Of India and there is no deviation from it in general.

ii)  There are no significant transactions with Related Parties, which may have a potential
conflict with the interests of the Company.

ili)  There were no cases of non-compliance by the Company and no penalties / strictures
imposed on the Company by any Statutory Authority on any matter.



iv)  There were no instances of non-compliance of any matter related to the capital market
during the last three years. Nor were there any fine or penalty imposed by the said
Authorities.

V) The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Listing Regulations,
2015 the revised Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. Compliance Status about the non-
mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations, 2015 are disclosed separately

elsewhere,
vi)  The Company has adopted a policy on dealing with related party transactions and the same
is disclosed at the Company’s website at

http://www.mchl.co.in/policy/DOC 169090.MARDA RPT-policy 2015.pdf

vil) The Company’s Remuneration Policy was adopted by the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee and has been placed on the Company’s website.

viii) The Audit Committee had recommended to the Board the Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil
Mechanism which was posted on the Company’s Website i.e. www.mchl.co.in

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Quarterly / Annual results

The unaudited quarterly and annual audited results are regularly published in a leading English
Daily Newspaper (Business Standard) and a Bengali Daily (Kalantar /Newz Bangla / Duranta
Barta) whereas the printed Annual Report containing statement of audited accounts and notice
convening the Annual General Meeting are mailed to the shareholders and also displayed on the
Company’s Website www.mchl.co.in

Website

The Company’s corporate website www.mchl.co.in contains comprehensive information about
the company. An exclusive section is for Investors wherein annual reports, quarterly / half-yearly
financial results, notices, shareholding patterns among others are available for reference or
download.

Annual Report

The Annual Report containing inter alia audited Annual Accounts, Reports of the Auditors and
Directors, Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and Analysis Report and other
important information is circulated to the members and displayed on the Company’s website.

Designated exclusive email-id

The Company has designated email-id exclusive for investor services info@mehl.co.in




Intimation to Stock Exchange

The Company intimates the Stock Exchanges about all price sensitive information or such other
matters which in its opinion are material and of relevance to the shareholders

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Annual General Meeting

315 AGM to be held on Monday, 28" December, 2020 at 04.30 P.M. at 11, Crooked Lane, First
Floor, Room No. 7, P.S.- Hare Street,

Kolkata, West Bengal-700069

Book Closure

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Register will remain closed from 21% December,
2020 to 29% December, 2020 (both days inclusive).

Registered Office:
11, Crooked Lane, First Floor, Room No. 7, P.S.- Hare Street,

Kolkata, West Bengal-700069

Listing of Equity Shares:
The Calcutta Stock Exchange
Annual Listing Fee has been duly paid

Demat ISIN Number for NSDL & CDSL:
INE 912C01014
Market Price Data

There has been no trading in the shares of the Company on Stock Exchange during the financial
year 2019-2020.

Name and Address of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA)

M/s. Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd.
D-511, Bagri Market, 71, B.R.B.B. Road,
Kolkata-700 001

Address for Investors’ Correspondence
Shareholders can correspond with the RTA and also direct to the Registered Office of the
Company.



Shareholding Pattern as on 31" March, 2020

Category No. of Shares % of holding
Promoter & Promoter Group 4745900 47.46
Domestic Companics 3544700 35.44
Indian Public 1710000 17.10
Total 10000600 100.00

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31% March, 2020

Share Holding | Sharcholders’ | Percentage of | No of | Percentage of
Number Shareholders | Shares Shares
1 to 500 0 0.00 0 0.00
501 to 1000 0 0.00 0 0.00
11001 to 5000 0 0.00 |0 1 0.00
5001 t0 10000 |0 0.00 10 0.00
10001 to S0000 1 3.33 25000 1 0.75
50001 to 100000 | 2 6.66 173000 1.73
100001and 27 90 9802600 98.02
above
Total 30 | 160,00 10000600 100.00

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and
likely impact on equity

None

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT REPORT

In accordance with the requirements for a listed Company, as stipulated by SEBI, a Reconciliation
of Share Capital Audit is conducted by a firm of Company Secretaries for the purpose of inter alia,




reconciliation and confirmation of the total admitted equity share capital with the depositories and
in the physical form with the total issued / paid up equity share capital of the company as listed on
the exchange.

Certificate issued in this regard are placed before the Board of Directors and forwarded to

exchange where the shares of the company are listed.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

Related-party transactions

The Company has adopted a policy on dealing with related party transactions and the same is
disclosed at the Company’s website at www.mechl,co.in

There are no significant transactions with Related Parties, which may have a potential conflict with
the interests of the Company.

Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the
Company by the stock exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related
to capital markets, during the last three years.

During the year under review there was no cases of non-compliance by the Company and no
penalties/strictures were imposed on the Company by any Statutory Authority on any matter.

Vigil Mechanism

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary Vigil
Mechanism as defined under Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing Regulations for directors and
employees to report concerns about unethical behavior. No person has been denied access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. The said policy has been also put up on the Website of the
Company i.c. www.mchl.co.in,

Accounting treatment in preparation of financial statements

The Company followed the guidelines as laid down in the Accounting Standards, prescribed by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, for the preparation of the financial statements and
there is no deviation from it in general.

The Company has adopted a policy for determining material subsidiaries and the same is disclosed
at the Company’s website at www.mchl.co.in

The Company’s Remuneration Policy was adopted by the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee and has been attached in Director’s Report.



The Audit Committee had recommended to the Board the Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil
Mechanism which was posted on the Company’s Website i.c. www.mchl.co.in

CEO (Managing Director)/CFO certification _
The CEO certification as required by Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulations, 2015, of is enclosed at the end of the Report.

Report on Corporate Governance

The Quarterly Compliance Report has been submitted to the Stock Exchanges where the
Company’s equity shares are listed in the prescribed format as per SEBI Regulation duly signed
by the Company Secretary or Managing Director.

Compliance
Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory
requirements of this Clause are as below:

Mandatory requirements ]
The Company was fully compliant with mandatory requirements of Listing Regulation

DECLARATION AFFIRMING COMPLIANCE OF CODE OF CONDUCT

This is to confirm that a Code of Conduct for the Board Members and Senior Management
Personnel including the Managing Director and Executive Directors of the Company has been
adopted by the Board and the same was also circulated and posted on the website of the Company.
The Company received declarations affirming Compliance of the Code from the persons
concerned for the year ended 31st March, 2020 and the same has also been noted by the Board.

For the purpose of this declaration, Senior Management means Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary as on 31.03.2020.

&,

For Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited

Sd/-
Daulat Ram Agarwala
Managing Director
(DIN 00586956)
Place: Kolkata
Date: 27/12/2020



To,

CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION

The Board of Directors
M/s Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited

Re: Financial Statement for the Financial Year 2019-2020 - Certification

We, Daulat Ram Agarwala, Managing Director and Aashish Agarwal, Chief Financial Officer of

M/s Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited on the review of Financial Statements and Cash Flow

Statement for the year ended 3 1st March, 2020 and that to the best of my knowledge and belief,

hereby certify that:

1.

These statement do not contain any materially untrue statements or omit any material fact
or contain statements that might be misleading;
These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.
There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year ended 315 March, 2020 which is fraudulent, illegal or violative
of Company’s Code of Conduct.
We accept responsibility of establishing and maintaining internal control systems of the
Company pertaining the financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the
Audit Committee those deficiencies in the design and operation of such internal controls
of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these
deficiencies.
We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

1. There have been no significant changes in internal control over financial

reporting during the period.

i There have been no significant changes in accounting policies during the
period.
iii. There have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become

aware and the involvement therein, of management or an employee having
significant role in the Company’s internal control systems over financial

reporting.



iv. That there were no deficiencies in the design or operations of Internal controls
that could adversely affect the company’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial data including any corrective actions.

V. That there are no material weaknesses in the Internal controls over financial

reporting.

For Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Daulat Ram Agarwala Aashish Agarwal
Managing Director CFO
(DIN 00586956)

Place: Kolkata
Date: 27/12/2020



YASHWANT GUPTA & ASSOCIATES .:= s

Company Secretaries

CERTIFICATE OF THE AUDITORS IN RESPECT OF
COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members of
Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Marda
Commercial & Holdings Limited (“the Company”), for the year ended on 31 March, 2020,
stipulated in Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the said
Company with stock exchange.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management.
Our examination was limited to a review of procedures and implementation thereof adopted by
the company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and representations made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the company
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned
Listing Agreement, as applicable.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the company.

For YASHWANT GUPTA& ASSOCIATES

PES?JM b
& G s ™
£y ’%m

kY SO\ #

[=
(YASHWANT KUMAR GUPTA) (Proprietor) 1%

\% & &/
DATE: 11/02/2021 NN
R e
PLACE: DELHI SN Con”

Company Secretary in Practice
MEMBERSHIP NO.:15154
C.P.No.: 15119

UDIN NO.:A015154B002783667

44-A/E- Block Extension, Shyam Vihar Phase-1 New Delhi
110043 E-Mail:csguptayash@gmail.com,
Phone:9582088097



FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2020

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

1. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

L65929WB1990PLC048280

Registration Date

29/01/1990

Name of the Company

Marda Commercial & Holdingd Limited

bl Bl Bl

Category/Sub-category
of the Company

NBFC/Public Company/Limited by Shares

Address of the
Registered office &
contact details

11, Crooked Lane, First Floor, Room No. 7,P.S.- Hare
Street, Kolkata, West Bengal-700069

Whether listed company

Listed

Name, Address &
contact details of the
Registrar & Transfer
Agent, if any.

Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd.

3A, AUKLAND Place, Room No. 7A & 7B,
7™ Floor, Kolkata — 700171

Phone No.: 033 22806616/6617/6618;
Email: nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com

1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities
contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

S. No. | Name and Description of main | NIC Code of the { %  to total turnover of the
products / services Product/service | company

1 Trading  and Investment | 64990 94.67%
Activities

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -
There is no business activity of Holding, Subsidiary and associate Company, contributing more
than 10 % to total turnover of Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited.




1V. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

A) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Sharehoiders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year(As
on (1- April- 2019)

No. of Shares held at the end of the year(As on
31-March-2020)

%

Institutions

Change
% of % of | quring
De-mat Physical Total Total De-mat Physical Total Total | the year
Shares Shares
A. Promoter s
i (1) Indian
‘;‘{).UFI“d“"d“al/ 7,00,000 | 25,77,500 | 32,77,500 | 32.773 |8,95000 | 19,07,500 |28,02,500 | 28.02 |4.75
b) Central
Govt. 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) State 1
| Govt.(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Bodies Corp. | 19,43,400 | 0 119,43,400 19.433 | 19,43,400 | 0 19,43,400 19433 | 0
¢) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total |
shareholding | ¢ 13 400 | 25,77,500 | 5220000 | 52.206 | 28,38,400 | 19,07,500 | 47,45,900 | 47.46 |4.74
of Promoter
(A)
B. Public
Shareholding
1. Institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i a) Mutual | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Funds
-b) Banks /FI | 0 0 io 0 ¢ 0 0 0 0
| ¢) Central Govt. | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) State | 0 0 |0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Govt.(s) ‘
e) Venture | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Funds
) Insurance | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Companies
) Flls 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
h) Foreign | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Venture Capital
Funds
i) Others | 0 0 0 0 10 0 0 0 0
(specify)
Sub-total 0 0 10 0 10 0 0 0 0
(B)(1):-
2 Non-




a) Bodies Corp.

1) Indian

2,44,700

38,00,000

40,44,700

40.445

2,44,700

33,00,000

35,44,700

35.44

if) Overseas

0

0

0

0

0

0

b) Individuals

1i}  Individual
sharcholders
holding
nominal share
capital up fo
! Rs.1 lakh

| i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess of Rs.l
| lakh

7,35,000

7,35,000

7.350

10,45,000

6,65,000

17,10,000

17.10

9.75

c) Others
(specify)

| Non Resident
Indians

Overseas
Corporate
Bodies

Foreign
Nationals

Clearing
Members

Trusts

o

<

<

Foreign Bodies
-DR

o

o R}

Sub-total
(B)(2):-

2,44,700

45,35,000

47,79,700

47.794

12,89,700

39,65,000

52,54,700

52.54

4,75

Total Public
Sharcholding
(By=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)

2,44,700

45,35,000

47,719,700

47.794

12,89,700

39,635,000

52,54,000

52.45

4.75

C. Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total
{A+B+C)

28,88,100

71,12,500

10000600

100

41,28,100

58,72,500

1,00,00,600

100




B) Sharcholding of Promoter-

SN | Shareholder's Shareholding at the beginning of the | Shareholding at the end of the year %
0. Name year change
No. of | % of total | % of | No.of Shares | % of total | % of ;lliarchol
Shares Shares of | Shares Shares of the | Shares din
the Pledge company Pledge durign
company d / d / the far
encumb encum Y
ered to bered
total to total
shares shares
1. i Aashish Agarwal 1,50,000 | 1.500 0 1,50,000 1.500 0 0
Advance Ispat 19,43,400 | 19.433 0 19,43,400 19.433 0 0
2. | (India) Limited
DN 1,75,000 { 1.750 0 1,75,000 1.750 0
Agarwal(Karta of 0
3. | HUR)
Daulat Ram 5,12,500 | 5.125 0 5,12,500 5125 0 0
4. | Agarwal
Kannu Priya 3,25,000 | 3250 0 0 0 0 3.250
5. | Agarwal )
6. | Lalit Agarwal 3,50,000 | 3.500 0 3,50,000 3.500 0 0
7. | Laxmi Agarwal 4,40,000 | 4.400 0 | 4,40,000 4.400 0 0
8. | Romil Agarwal 2,00,000 {2.000 0 | 4,50,000 | 4.5000 0 2.5
9. | Sadanand Agarwal | 1,60,000 | 1.600 0 1,60,000 1.600 0 0
10. | Sanmukh Agarwal | 2,70,000 | 2.700 0 2,70,000 2.700 0 0
11. | Shalini Agarwal 1,50,000 | 1.500 0 1,50,000 1.500 0 0
12. | Sncha Agarwal 545000 | 5450 0 0 0 0 5.450
Deoki Nandan 0 0 0 1,45,000 1.450 0 1.450
13. | Agarwal o




iii) Change in Promoters’ Sharcholding (please specify, if there is no change}
S.No. | Particulars Shareholding  at  the | Cumulative
beginning of the year Shareholding during the
year
No. | % of total | No. of | % of total
shares shares  of | shares shares
the the
company company
1. Aashish Agarwal
At the beginning of the year 1,50,000 1.5
(No Change during the year)
| At the end of the year ] 1 1,50,000 |15
| 2. Advance Ispat (India) Limited
At the beginning of the year 19,43,400 19.433
(No Change during the year)
| At the end of the year | [ 19,43,400 |19.433
3. DN Agarwal (Karta of HUF)
At the beginning of the year 1,75,000 1.750
(No Change during the year)
| At the end of the year ] [1,75,000 | 1.750
4. Daulat Ram Agarwal
At the beginning of the year 512,500 | 5.125
(No Change during the year)
At the end of the year 5,12,500 5.125
5. Kannu Priya Agarwal
At the beginning of the year 3,25,000 3.250
(Transferred to Shashi Agarwal)
At the end of the year 0 0
6. Lalit Agarwal
At the beginning of the year 3,50,000 3.5
{No Change during the year)
At the end of the year 3,50,000 3.5
17. | Laxmi Agarwal
At the beginning of the year 4,40,000 4.40 ,
(No Change during the year)
At the end of the year 4,40,000 4.40
8. Romil Agarwal 2,00,000 2.00




At the beginning of the year | ! |
(Trans from GEEFCEE Finance Ltd.)
At the end of the year 4,50,000 4.50
9, Sadanand Agarwal
At the beginning of the year 1,60,000 1.6
(No Change during the year)
At the end of the year 1,60,000 1.6
10. Sammukh Agarwal
At the beginning of the year | 2,70,000 1 2.7
(No Change during the year)
At the end of the year 2,70,000 2.7
111, Shalini Agarwal '
At the beginning of the year 1,50,000 1.5
(No Change during the year)
At the end of the year 1,50,000 1.5
12. Sneha Agarwal
At the beginning of the year 5,45,000 5.45
(Trans to DN Agarwal & Vatsal Agarwal)
At the end of the year |0 |0
[13. Deoki Nandan Agarwal ;
At the beginning of the year 0 0
(Transferred from Sneha Agarwal)
At the end of the year 1,45,000 1.45
TOTAL 52,20,900 52.206 44,95900 | 44.96
iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
| 8.No. | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the beginning |{ Cumulative
Sharcholders of the year Shareholding during
the
year
%oftotal | No.  of | % oftotal
No. of shares shares of | shares shares of
the the
company company
1. M/s. Farsight Brokers Private | 2,25,000 2.250
Limited




At the beginning of the year

| | |

(No Change during the year)

At the end of the year

] 12,25,000 |2.250

Farsight Securities Limited

3,75,000 3.75

At the beginning of the year

{(No Changs during the year)

At the end of the year

Goyal Commercial Private
Limited

1,71,700 1.72

At the beginning of the year

(Transferred to Shashi Agarwal & Romil Agarwal)

At the end of the year

] [1,71,700 | 1.72

IM Securities Private Limited

| At the beginning of the year

5,00,000 | 5.00

{(No Change during the year)

At the end of the year

| 15,00,000 |5.00

KK Capital Services (P) Ltd.

| At the beginning of the year 2,50,000 5
(No Change during the year)
At the end of the year | | 2,50,000 | 2.5
| Roma Impex Private Limited
At the beginning of the year | 4,50,000 4.5
' (No Change during the year)
| At the end of the year | [4,50,000 |4.5
Reebok Advertising &
Marketing (P) Ltd.
At the beginning of the year 2,50,000 2.5
(No Change during the year)
At the end of the year | [2,50,000 |25
| Shanti Associated (P) Ltd. 2,50,000 2.5

At the beginning of the year

(No Change during the year)

At the end of the year

] | 2,50,000 |2.5

Shiv Pure Water Point (P) Ltd

At the beginning of the year

4,00,000 4.00

(No Change during the year)




At the end of the year 4,00,000 | 4.00
10. Shridhar Financial Services
Limited
At the beginning of the year 4,50,000 4.5
(No Change during the year)
At the end of the year 4,50,000 |45
Total 36,50,000 36.498 36,50,000 | 36.498
E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
S.No. | Sharcholding of each Directors and | Sharcholding at the | Cumulative
each Key Managerial Personnel beginning Shareholding  during
of the year the
year
No. of | %oftotal | No.  of | % of total
shares shares of | shares shares of
the the
company company
1. i Mr. Lalit Agarwal (Director) _
At the beginning of the year 3,50,000 | 3.490
(No Change during the year)
At the end of the year | 13,50,000 | 3.490
2. Shri. Daulat Ram Agarwala (MD)
At the beginning of the year 512,500 | 5.12
{No Change during the year)
At the end of the year ] | 5,12,500 [5.12
3. Mr. Aashish Agarwal (CFO)
At the beginning of the year 1,50,000 | 1.5
(No Change during the year)
| At the end of the year j 11,50,000 {15




(V) INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including mterest outstanding/accrued but

not due for payment.

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the
beginning of the financial
| year

i) Principal Amount

; 9,15,45,682

9,15,45,682

i1} Interest due but not paid

1i1) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i-+ii+ii)

- 9,15,45,682

9,15,45,682

Change in Indebtedness
during the financial year

* Addition

- 65,91,290

65,91,290

* Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of
the financial year

i) Principal Amount

- 9,81,36,972

9,81,36,972

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

- 9,81,36,972

9,81,36,972

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIJIAL PERSONNEL-
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SN. Particulars of Remuneration | Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount
Daulat Ram Agarwal
(Managing Director)

1 | Gross salary 6,00,000 6,00,000

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

| () Profits in lieu of salary under

section 17(3) Income- tax Act,
1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity




Commission- as % of profit

- others, specify...

Others, please specily

Total (A)

6,00,000

Ceiling as per the Act

6,00,000

B. Remuneration to other directors

SN.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total Amount

Independent Directors

Ashok
Kumar Gupta

Lalit
Agarwal

Kamlesh
Gupta

Fee for

board
meetings

attending
fcommittee

22,500

22,500

| Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive
Directors

for attending

committee

Fee
board
meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

22,500

22,500

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY

MD/MANAGER/WTD

MANAGERIAL

PERSONNEL OTHER THAN

SN

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CS

CFO

Total

Gross salary

1,44,000

[6,00,000

7,44,000

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in | -

| section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income- | -

| tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section | -
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961




2 | Stock Option - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - -

4 Commission - - -

- as % of profit - - -
others, specify. .. - - -

| 5 | Others, please specify - - -
Total 1,44,000 | 6,00,000 7,44,000

VIL PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the | Brief Details of | Authority Appeal made,
Companies Description | Penalty /{IRD/NCLT/ | if any (give
Act Punishment/ COURT] Details)

| Compounding
fees imposed

A. COMPANY

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding | - - - - -

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty - - - - -

| Punishment - - - - -

Compounding | - - - - -

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty - - - - .

Punishment - 1= - . -

| Compounding | - - - - -

Place:; Kolkata For and on Behalf of the Board
Date: 27/12/2020

Sd/- sd/-
Daulat Ram Agarwal Lalit Agarwal
(Managing Director) (Director)

DIN: 00586956 DIN: 00109920



ANNEXURE -V
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3)q) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
MANAGERJAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014,

A) Information as per Rule 5(1) of chapter XIII, Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

1) REMUNERATION PAID TO DIRECTOR

Notes:-

Calculation based on annualized salary.

Salary includes bonus amount.

No remuneration is paid to any Non-Executive director during the period

The Median Remuneration of Employees (MRE) including Managing Directors (MD)
was Rs. 6,00,000/- in the financial year 2019-20.

The Median Remuneration of Employees (MRE) excluding Managing Directors (MD) was
Rs. 6,00,000/- in the financial year 2019-20.

F. The number of permanent employees in the rolls of the company as on 31.03.2019 and
31.03.2020 were 3 and 3 respectively.

oWy

(e

G. The Company being listed in CSE Ltd and at CSE the market capitalization stands at Rs,
100,006,000 (Divided into 10,000,600 Equity Shares @ Rs. 10 each). The shares of the
company were last traded for Rs. 2.05 on 11/07/2005. The growth in market capitalization
remained stagnant.

H. The company has a Nomination & Remuneration Policy in place, and it is strictly followed
for fixation and payment of remuneration to the managerial personnel and other employees
of the company. The policy has been developed with adherence to the Companies Act, 2013
and all other statutes as applicable.

I. During the Financial year 2019-20 no employee received remuneration in excess of the
highest paid Director.

1. There is no percentage increase in median remuneration of employees during F.Y 2019-
2020.

K. There is no change in salaries paid to employees in the last financial year.

L. The remuneration provided is as per the remuneration policy as approved by the Nomination
& remuneration Committee of the Company.



" Nagar Goel & Chinwda

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Marda Commercial & Holdings Ltd
Report an the Audit of the Financial Statements

{pinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS fnanclal statements of Marda Commercial &
Holdings Ltd comprising of the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including other comprehiensive income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes it Equity for the vear then ended, and notes to the Ind AS fnancial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{hereinafter referred to as ‘the Ind AS financial statements’),

In our opinien and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financlal statements pive the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended {‘the Act} in the manner 2o required and phre a trae and {alr view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at 31 March 2020, their prefit including other comprehensive income, their
cash flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinlon

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS Financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (8As], as specified under section 143{10} of the Act. Our responstbililes under those
Standards are Further described in the 'Auditor™s responsibilitles for the audit of the Ind AS
Financial dtatements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the *‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India woeether with
the ethical requirements that are refevant to our audit of the fnancist statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have Muifilled our other ethical
responsibilities In accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that
the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Ind AS Gnancial statements,

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit malters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
sigivificance in our audit of the linancial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the eontext of our audit of the Anancial statements a5 s whole, and in forming our
opinion thergon, and we do not provide z separate opinien on these matters.

We have determined the malters described below to be the key audit matters to be
cammunicated in our reporr. We have fulfilied the responsibilities described in the Auditor's
responsibilities forr the audit of the Ind AS financial statements section of our report, including
in relation to these matters, Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed 1o respond to owr assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS
financial statements. The results of audit procedures performed by us, including those
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying Ind AS financial statements

C-3/7, Safdarjung Development Area, New Deihi-110016 o
Telefax ; +91-11-41074949 Mohile ; +91-9971234216 E-mall ; ds@cangc.in



Ind AS 109 requives the Company to
recognise impaivment loss alowance
towards its financial assets [designaled
at amortised cost and fair value through
other comprehensive income) using the
expected credit loss (ECL) approach.
Such ECL allowance is reguired to be
measured  consldering  the guiding
principles of Ind AS 1049 including:
= unbiased, probabllity weighted
outcome under varigus
scenarios;

sl | ey Audit matter Auditors' Response
1. | Transitien to Ind AS  accounting
framewaorl
The Company has adopted Ind AS [rom 1 | « Read the Ind AS impact assessment t
April 2019 with an elfective date of 1 performed by the Management and the
April 20106 for such tramsition. For resultant changes made (o the acmunting%
periods up to and including the vear policies considering the requirements of the :
ended 31 March 2019, the Company had new frameworl. ;
i prepared and presented its financial | e Gvaluated the exemptions and exceptions )
i statements in  accordance with  the allowed by Ind AS and applied by the
erstwhile generally accepted accounting Management in  applying the first-time
principles in India {Indian GAAP) adoption principles of Ind AS 101 in respect
To glve effect of the transition to Ind AS, of fir valuation of assets and liabilities
these financial statements for the year existing as at transition date,
ended 31 March 2020, together with the |« Tested the accounting adjustments posted as
comparative financial information for at the transition date and in respect of the
the previous year ended 31 March 2019 previous year to convert the financial
and the transition date Balance Sheet as | jnfermation reported under erstwhile Indian
at 1 April 2018 have been prepared GAAP to Ind AS.
under Ind AS. » Tested the disclosures preseribed under Ind
AL,
The transition has involved significant
change in the Company's policies and
processes for financial  reporting,
including peneration of supportable
infarmation and applying estimaies to
inter alia determine impact of Ind AS on
accounting and disclosire reguirements
prescribed under the extant Reserve
Bank ol India (REI} directions. In view of
the complexity involved, Ind AS
transition  and  the preparation  of
financial statements subsequent to the i
transition date have been areas of key
foeus i our audit,
2 |lmpairment  on [inancisb | oassets
! [expected credit losses). Wwe  read and assessed the Company’s

accounting policies for impairment of financial
assets and their compliance with Bnd AS 109,

We Lested the criteria for staging of
loans based on their past-due status to
check compliance with requirement of
Ind A5 109 Tested a sample of
performing (stage 1) loans to assess
whether any loss indicators were
present requiring them to be classified
under stage 2 or 3 and vice versa.

We evaluated the reasanablenc §E:.ft’hn

Management pstilnates
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time value of money;
imipact arising from forward
looking macro-econonic factors

and;
« avaifability of reasonable and
supportable information

without undue costs,

Applying  these principles
significant estimation in various aspects,
such as!

e grouping of borrowers based on

homogeneity by using
appropriate statistical
technigues;

= staging of loans and estimation
of behaviorat lile;

¢ determining macro-econonmic
factors impacting credit quality
of receivabies;

» estlmation of losses for Joan
products  with  no/minimal

historicat defaulss.

Consldering the significance of such
allowance to the overalt fihancial
statements and the degree of estimation
involved in computation of expected
credit losses, this area is considered as a
key audit matter.

involves |

estimation and tested the controls
around data extraction and validation.
Tested the ECL model, including
assumptions and underlying
computation.

Assessed the floor/minimum rates of
provisioning applied for loan products
with inadequate historical defaults.
Audited disclosures included in the Ind
AS Hnancial statements In respect of
expected credit losses.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other
informatlon which comprises the Director's Report including annexures to Director's
Report, Management Discussion and Analysis Report and Repert on Corpurate
Governance, but does not include the financial statements and our auditer’s report
thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other faformation and
accordingly, we do nol express any larm of assurance conclusion thereon.

In comnecton with cur audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in deing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with financial statements or our knowledge oblained during the colirse of
audi{ or otherwise appears to he materially misstated.

Based on the work we have perfermed, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report the fact. We have
naothing to report in this regard.

O
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Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that pive a true and fair view
of the financial position, finandal perfarmance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and statement ol changes in equity in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepled in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) specified under
section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the Companies are responsible for
maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Acr for
safeguarding of the assels and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; malking judgments and estimates
that are reagsonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
comptleteness ol the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and preseatation of the Ind
A% [inanciat statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the Ind
AS financial statements by the Directars of the Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors af the companles
are responsible for assessing the abiliy of the Company to cortinue as a going concer,
diselosing, as applicable, matters refated to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting untess Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operatjons,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Thase respective Board of Directors of the Companies 4re also responsible for overseeing the
financlal reperting process of the Company.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
stalements as a whole are free from material nisstatement, whether due te fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion, Reasanable assurance is a high level
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs wilt always
detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered materiat i, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial
statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exerclsce professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s Identily and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or ervor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery,
intentiona) omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal contral,

e  Obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to desipn audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143{31(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system i piace and the operating
effectivencss of such cantrols.




+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting poticies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the geing concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability Lo contlintee as a going conceri. I we conclude thal a material uncerkainty exisus,
we are reguired to draw attention in our auditor's report to the refated disclosures in
the Ind AS financlal statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to medify our
opinion, Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's repart. However, [uture events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure angd content ol the Ind A5 financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the linancial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in & manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in dnternal cantred that we identify during our audit.

We also provide these charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, refated safeguards,

Fram the matters communicated with those charge with povernance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of Ind AS financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation prectudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extiemely rare circumstances in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public benelits of such communication.

Report on other legal and reputatory requirements
As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report} Order, 2016 {"the Order"}, issued by the
Central Government of India 1n termis of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the “Annexure [A)" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the Grder, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143 {3) of the Act, we repory, to the extent applicable, that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the informaticn: and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of actount as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive lncome, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account mamtamed for; t-hcz o
purpose of preparation of the Ind A5 linancial statements; ,fi':‘:':’" ey
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d}

g)

h}

In our opinlon, the aforesald Ind AS financial statenients cornply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March, 2020 from being appointed as a divector in terms of Section 164 [2) of the
At

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such contrels, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure {BY"

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance
with the reguirements of section 197(16] of the Act, as amended,

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 ol the Act,

With vespect to the other matters to be included in the Auditer's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Campanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our apinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

{1} The Company has disclosed the hmpact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Financial Statements - Reler Note 31 to the Financial Statements;
{li} The Company did not have any long termn contracts including derivative contracts
far which there were any material foreseeable losses;
(it} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred by the company to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund during the year ended 31 March
20240,

For Nagar Goel & Chawla
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ANNEXURE (A) TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDINGS LTD

The Annexure referred to in independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020, we report that:

{i}  Inrespectof its property. plant and equipment:
The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment; therefore the provision
of this ctause of the Companies {Auditor's Report} Order, 2016 is not applicable ta the
Company;

(i} Invespect ofits Inventory
The Company does not have any inventory; therefore the provision of this clause of
companies {Auditor’s Report} Order, 2016 is not applicable to the company.

{(iii)  In our opinion and according ta the information and explanations provided to us, the
Company has pranted leans to a Company covered in the register maintzined under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act’}

(a) In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which the loans had
been granted to the parties listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act
were not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest af the Company.

() The terms of arrangement do not stipulate any repayment schedule and the toans are
repayable on demand with interest,

[¢) Since the term of arrangement do not stipulate any repayment schedule and the loans are
repayable on demand, no question of overdue amounts will arise in vespect of the loans
granted to the partics listed in the register matntained under section 189 of the Act.

(iv] In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with
respect ta the loans and investinents made,

(v}  According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not
aceepted any deposits from the public. Accordingly, the direetives issued by Reserve
Bank of India and the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Act and rules framed thereunder in this regard, are not applicable.

{vi) According to the informatien and explanations provided to us, the Central Government
has not specified for maintenance of cast records under section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of the activities carried on by the Company. Hence, the provisions of
paragraph 3{vi} of the Order is nov applicable to the Company.

{vii} According to the information and explanations gwen o us us in respect of statutery dues;
4, The Company has generally been regular in depositing uandisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service

Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value added Tax, Cess ami
other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities, ,&t N

(s

N




b. There iwere no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty,
xcise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as
at 31# March, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

¢, Details of dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Buty and Excise Duty
which have nat heen deposited as at 31 March, 2020 on account of disputes are
given below

Name of the Nature of Dues | PERIOD | Amount invelved F(:::; Etu‘:ehizm
Statute {AY.] [Rs. in Hundred)
pending
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 2011-12 19,780.39 {ZI'I‘[ai;peals}
1961 Kolkala
Income Tax Act, | income Tax 2012-13 23,488.92 I'T(appeliate
1961 {tribunat)
Kelkata
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 2014-15 15.072.65 : CITfappeals)
1961 - i Kolkata

{viii} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

(ix}

(x)

(xi)

{xi)

(xiti)

Company has not raised loan or borrowings from banks, financial Institutions, and
Government or debenture holders during the year under audit and thereflere paragraph
3(viii} of the Order is not applicable.

Acconding to the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not
raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and not avaited the facility of term loans during the year under audit and
therefore paragraph 3(ix} of the Order is not applicable.

Buring the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the conpany or any
frand by its officers or employees was noticed or reparted during the year.

To the best of owr knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us manageral remuneration has bren paid or provided in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V Lo the
Companies Acl;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company s not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xit} of the Order is oot
applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us and hased on our examination
of the records of the Company, \ransactions with the related parties ave in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed tn the {inancial statements as required by the applicable acqggpg}_{lgr
standards. e




(xiv] According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
privake placement of shates or Mily or partly convertible debentures during the year
under audit.

(xv) According ta the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not enfered into non-cash transaclions
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv} of the Order
is not applicable.

(xvi) ‘To the best of our knowledge and according to the infermation and explaations given to
us, the company has registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934,

For Nagar Goel & Chawla

Chartered Accountants

[CAI Tirm Registration Mo, : G09233N
™

Dita
Partner

Membership No.: 515584
UDIN: 20515984AAAAIF7753

Place: New Delht
Bate: 25.08.2020



ANNEXURE- (B) TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDINGS LTD

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-sectlon 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Marda Commercial
& Holdings Ltd ["the Company") as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Conpany for the year ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financiat reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essentia) componeats of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities inciude the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internat financlal controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s palicies, the
safepuarding of its assets, the provantion and detection uf frauds and ervors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation ol reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit with reference to these Ind AS financial statements. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note”} and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by ICA} and deemaed to be prescribed under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, te the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicabte to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audil involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS
financial stalements and their operating effectiveness, Our andit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and lesting amd
evaluating the design and operating ellectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
Jrasis for our audit opinion on the Company’s tnternal financial controls system over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financlal statements. s :




Meaning of Internal Financial Controts over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financlal contral over financial reparting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the retiability of Anancial reporting and the preparation of Ind
AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. & company's internal financial contrel over fnancialb reporting includes those
polictes and precedures that

3. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, aceurately and fairly
refiect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasanable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary te permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receiplts and expenditures of the company are being made oily in
accordance with autharizations of manageinent and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the Ind AS financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financlal Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporiing,
including the possibility of collusion or improper managenment override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
cvaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may hecome
inadeguate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or pracedures may deteriorace,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial contrals
system over fHnancial reporting and such internal financial controls over financiat reporting
were operating elfectively as at March 31, 2020, based on “the internal control over financial
reporiing criteria established by the Company considering the essentlal components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”,

For Nagar Goel & Chawla

Chartered Accoantants

ICAI i{ngl Registration No. : 009933N
o i

L L
L T

Dhax ider Singhal

Farin

Menthership No. : 515984
UDIN: Z0515084AAAAN]F7753
Mace: New Delhi

Date; 25082020




Nagar Goel & Chawla

Chartered Accountants

NON-RANKING FINANCIAL COMPANIES AUDITOR'S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2420

To

Buard of Direciors

Marda Commercial & Holdings Ltd
H1, Functional induskrial Estate
Patparganj, Delhi 110092

Dear 5rs,

As required by the "Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report {teserve Bank) Directions
2016", issued by Reserve Bank of india {RBI), on the malters specified in Chapter - 31 of the said
Directions to the extent applicalie to the Company, we report Ut

1.

The company is engaged in the business of Non-banking financial institution and has obtained
certificate of registration from RBI as a Non- banking financial company, withoul accepling
public deposit, vide Certifleate of Registration [COR) no. 502261,

The Company is meeting the principal business criterla {Financial asset / income pattern) as
laid down vide the bank's press release dated 08 April 1999 and directions issued by DINBR
and therefore is entitted to continue to hold above Certificate of registration (COR} in terms of
its assel / income pallernas on 31 March Z020.

The Company is meeting the requirement of nel owned funds applicable to Non-Banking
Financlal Companies as laid down in Master Directlon - Non-Banking Financlal Cortpany -
Systematically Important Non-Deposit taking Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

The Board of Directors have passed a resolution in its mecting held on 17 May 2019 for non-
acceptance of any puhlic depostt during FY 2019-20.

The Company has not accepled any public deposit during the year ended 31 March 2020.

In our opinlon and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us,
company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognition, accounting
standards, asset classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as applicable to it
in tlerms of Nou-Banking Financtal Company - Non-Systemically lmportant Non-Deposit
taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 20106

C-3/7, Safdarjung Development Area, New Delhi-110016
Telefax @ +91-11-41074349 Mobile : +91-9971234216 E-maill : ds@cangc.in



-7, As per the information and according to the explanation given to us and based on our audit,
the Company ks not covered under NBFC Micro Finance institutions {MFI) as defined in the
Non-Banking Financial Company - Non-Svstemicaily lmportant Non-Deposit taking Company
{Reserve Bank] Directions, 203 6.

o Nagar Goel & Chawla
Chartered Accouniants
ICAT Firm Registration No.: 0099338

N>
Dhabm:é{nder Singhal
Partner

Membership No. : 515984
DDIN: 20515984AAAAKAT1949
Mace: New Pelhi

Date: 26.08.2020




Nagar Goel & Chawila

Chartered Accountants
Statutery Auditors' Corlflcale [SALC)

We have vxamined the bools of accnunts and other records of Marda E_umum_cj_gi & Hofdings Lig! tor the Financial Year ending Mareh 31,
2020, O the brusiy of e lofurmatlon submitted toous, we certify e foflowing:
8l |Particulars Befails
T |Mamea{the coppany Mavda Gonmerglal & Holdoes fed
2 _1CertlAcate of Begdstration Mo SA2261
1 {Repizterod office Address 11, Croaked Late, Fiest Floor

ftoam No, 7 B.5- Hare Soeeer
Holleain-TOO0RG

4 tCarporate office Address A1, Funcilonal Industrinl Fstake
R Patpargsn, Bethi 1E00Y2
5 [The company has been classiflled by REL as: Loan Company
finyestment Cocany £ Loar Comngne ARG £ NRFC-BEL S BEITC- Factnr 080 L0 BE
O [Wet Gwaed Fund (e 1o Crore) 3220
fobrptotton of the sarge G aives it tho Anpeyipre-110
7 |Telal Ausets [Re Iy Crope] 5974
8 |Asset-Income pattern;

L. berms of HEE 19esy ftelegse 19909943 209 dated Aprid £, 10G5)

a] B of Pinanctal Assets Lo Tolal Assets B1A1%
] % of Financiol Incoing to Gross fncome L4 6%
(VBFG-Foctur £ EFC-MIT ARG £ mcv flver repart separotely bolow]

2 [whether the company was holding any Public Beposits, as on Mareh 31, 20207 Mo

i ¥es Abe aippunt (s in Croret
0 Hlas ithe company trandferred a swn oot fess than 20% of its Net Prolit for the yesr to Beserve|Yus

ifung?

{ir termys of Sec 45-10 of the 63 et 1834) .
11 |Has the company received aoy FBEY If Yes did the company comply wlth the minimom| Mo
capitlalization norms for the FOI7
12 |1 the company |5 classiAmbas an BBIC-Factos; Mot Applicable
a} % of Fagtoring Assets to Total Assots

) % of Fackeving Ingoine Lo Gross lncome
13 Ufthe company is classificd as an NREC-MET: Mot Applicable
% of Qualifvlng Assets to Hol Assots

frofor tp Morifficotion DN A0 Na 238 COM (EIST 2073 dared Depembar 08 260133

L4 [fthe company s classifled as an AVC; Mot Applicable
) B of Advances plven for creation of physicat / real nesets supporting economic activiey to Total
Fy Vo
b} % of Inenme penerated ot of these assets to Total locare

15 [Efthe company iz claseIfed ag an NBFC-IFLC Mol Applivable

Y af [nfrastructure Loans 10 Tolal Assets
16 |Has there been any takeoverfocquisition of contred/ change I sharcholdingy Manageiment during|No
the yearwhich required prior approval feom RBE?
[ploase rofer o Master Directions {ssved by DRNR
i} Master Direction - Non-Banling Financial Company - Non-Systemically imnnnant Mo =Thopos|
taliing Company [Reserve Bank] Directions : and
i) Master Divoction - Noo-Banking E‘irlam.ia.] Comnpany - Systemically lmpartant Mon-Deposit

talcing Company aind Meposit taling Cmn {Rescrve Banld] Divections,
in terms of Chapter 11 of the Master Hirection- w1"‘/3.1m<ir:||.3 midal Lanifa s A ata ey Repart (Heserve hank] Divections, Z0Eh, A separate

repor o W Boprd of drectars of the company has been prepared,

I have read and upderstood Chapter [ of the Master Direction- Non Banking financial Companies Awditor's Reqeaet [Resarve bank] fHrectlons,
2Dia,

For Nagar Gool & Chawla
Chartered Avcountants
[Cf}l fu,llm RL’].IL!: L u.hun No.: H09935N . -

N%

Dha m\%ﬁ'udel Singhal
Faroe

Muomberstip Mo, 515984
UDIN: 2051 5984AA AN T423
Place: New Delbl

Date 23092020

C-3/7, Safdarjung Development Area, New Delhi-110016
Telefax @ +91-11-41074949 Mobile : +91-9971234216 E-mail ; ds@cangc.in



MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDINGS LTD
CIN - L65929WB1990PLC048280

Balance sheet as at 31st March 2020

All amounts are in Rupees hundred, unless otherwise stated

. As at 31st March | As at 31st March| Asat 1st April
Particulars Note 2020 2019 2018
ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 2,43,008.10 9,191.77 37,214.74
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 4 1,29,637.60 1,21,948.34 1,14,847.57
Receivables - 5
Trade Receivable - - -
Other Receivable 11,850.00 458.01 4.30
Loans 6 16,11,424.83 17,64,824.75 16,18,382.67
Investments 7 32,76,189.66 32,37,884.49 31,22,972.35
Other financial assets 8 5,267.75 4,553.44 4,828.47
52,77,377.94 51,38,860.80 | 48,98,250.10
Non-financial Assets
Current tax assets (Net) 9 37,594.00 30,726.28 25,419.95
Investmentproperty 10 6,39,050:67 6,50,068.79 6,61,086.91
Property, plant and equipments 11 - 530.37 530.37
Other non-financial assets 12 20,011.80 20,000.00 -
6,96,656.47 7,01,325.44 6,87,037.23
Total assets 59,74,034.41 58,40,186.24 | 55,85,287.33
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 13 9,81,369.72 9,15,456.82 8,37,836.51
Other financial liabilities 14 5,553.73 8,356.53 7,050.02
9,86,923.45 9,23,813.35 8,44,886.53
Non-financial Liabilities
Current tax liabilities (Net) 15 17,412.57 16,625.94 21,000.00
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 16 6,36,036.70 6,40,936.37 6,15,362.86
Other non-financial liabilities 17 7,993.65 9,642.90 8,817.75
6,61,442.92 6,67,205.21 6,45,180.61
Equity
Shareholder's funds
Equity Share capital 18 10,00,060.00 10,00,060.00 10,00,060.00
Other equity 19 33,25,608.04 32,49,107.68 30,95,160.19
. 43,25,668.04 42,49,167.68 40,95,220.19
Total liabilities and equity 59,74,034.41 58,40,186.24 | 55,85,287.33
Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts 1-42 - - -

As per our report of even date
For Nagar Goel & Chawla
Chartered Accountants

eglstratlon No.: 009933N
M/’W

er Smghal

Membership No. 515984
Place :New Delhi

Date : 25.08.2020

On behalf of the Board of Directors

For MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDINGS LTD

D Aok Lot

Daulat Ram Agarwala
Managing Director
DIN : 0000586956 /‘*’”

\ /‘“/

/Aashlsh Agarwal
< Chief Financial Officer
PAN NO. AEJPA0655G

Lalit Agarwal
. Director

DIN: 00 01099920

yk//

CL
‘X;;rﬁany Secretary

PAN NO. DUGMPS5770C




MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDINGS LTD
CIN- L65929WB1990PLC048280

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2020
All amounts are in Rupees hundred, unless otherwise stated

. i Year ended 31st Year ended 31st
Particulars Note | March 2020 March 2019
Revenue
I Revenue from operations 20 1,89,436.54 2,12,314.93
11 Other income 21 10,649.47 5,850.00
11 |Total Income (I+II) 2,00,086.01 2,18,164.93
Expenses
Finance costs 22 73,236.55 91,823.34
Impairment of financial instruments 23 57,837.31 6,925.70
Employee benefits expense 24 13,320.00 12,840.00
Depreciation and amortization 25 11,018.12 11,018.12
Other expense 26 11,336.54 19,418.39
1v |Total expense 1,66,748.52 1,42,025.55
V  {Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax
{111-IN 33,337.49 76,139.38
V1 |Exceptional items - -
Vil |Profit before tax (V-VI) 33,337.49 76,139.38
VIII | Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 17,412.57 16,625.94
{(2) Short/(Excess) provision of income tax for earlier (671.74) (88.67)
years
(2) Deferred tax liability/(assets) (17,157.50} (4,607.69)
{416.67) 11,929.58
IX |Profit/(Loss) for the period from continuing operations (VII-
VI 33,754.16 64,209.80
X Profit/(Loss) for the period from discontinuing operations - -
XIII |Profit for the period (IX-X) 33,754.16 64,209.80
X1V [Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss
Change in fair value of equity instruments(Un-quoted)
through OCI 55,004.03 1,19,918.89
Tax impact on above 12,257.83 30,181.20
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax) 42,746.20 89,737.69
Total Comprehensive Income for the period . 76,500.36 1,53,947.49
Xil |Earnings per equity share:
Basic and diluted earning per share (in Rs.) 27 0.34 0.64
[face value of Rs. 10 each]

Membership No. 515984
Place :New Delhi

Date : 25.08.2020

As per our report of even date
For Nagar Goel & Chawla
Chartered Accountants

ICAI

On behalf of the Board of Directors
For MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDINGS LTD

\3 auk ek Lo

Daulat Ram Agarwala
Managing Director

DIN : 0000586956 ..

-

~

&sh,./ -
Aashish Agarwal

-~Chief Financial Officer

PAN NO. AEJPAO655G

e N

AAAA

Dy

N

Lalit Agarwal
Director R
DIN : 00001099920

()‘}’/394\/19)

uja :
Compgny Secretary
PANNO. DUGMP5770C




MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDINGS LTD

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2020

CIN-L65929WB1990PLC048280

All amounts are in Rupees hundred, unless otherwise stated

a. Equity share capital

Balance as at 1 April 2018 10,00,060
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2018-19

Balance as at 31 March 2019 10,00,060
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2019-20 -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 10,00,060

b. Other equity

Particulars Statutory Reserve

Retained earnings ‘;giizlslzi:;;n;i Total

1934

Balance as at 1 April 2018 + 28,39,876.47 2,55,283.72 30,95,160.19
Profit for the vear 64,209.80 - 64,209.80
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 89,737.69 89,737.69
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,53,947.49 - 1,53,947.49
Transfer to reserve fund in terms of section 45-1C(1) of the (30,789.50) 30,789.50 -
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Balance as at 31 March 2019 29,63,034.46 2,86,073.22 32,49,107.68
Balance as at 1 April 2019 29,63,034.46 2,86,073.22 32,49,107.68
Profit for the year 33,754.16 - 33,754.16
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 42,746.20 42,746.20
Total comprehensive income for the year 76,500.36 - 76,500.36
Transfer to reserve fund in terms of section 45-1C(1) of the (15,300.07) 15,300.07 -
Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934
Balance as at 31 March 2020 30,24,234.75 3,01,373.29 33,25,608.04

As per our report of even date

For Nagar Goel & Chawla
Chartered Accountants

ICAI 7ffm R/g;gistration No.: 009933N

i
|

Membeérship No. 515984
Place :New Delhi

Date : 25.08.2020

On behalf of the Board of Directors

For MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDINGS LTD

Sk ak

7)ot

Daulat Ram Agarwala

Managing Director
DIN : 0000586956

e

Aashih Agarwal

~~"Chief Financial Officer

PAN NO. AEJPAD655G

.

Lalit Agarwal
Director
DIN : 00001099920 *

A

PAN NO. DUGMP5770C




MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDINGS LTD
CIN- L65929WB1990PLC048280

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended ended 31st March 2020
All amounts are in Rupees hundred, unless otherwise stated

Year ended 31st March| As at 31st March

Particulars 2020 2019
A) Cash flow from operating activities:
Profit before tax 33,337.49 76,139.38
Adjustments for_:-
Depreciation and amortisation 11,018.12 11,018.12
Impairement of financial instruments 57,837.31 6,925.70
Loss on sale of assets 30.37 -
loss/(Gain) on fair valuation of financial instruments (2,156.47) 1,065.51
Operating profit before working capital changes- 1,00,066.82 95,148.71
Adjustments for :-
Decrease/(Increase) in Receivables (11,391.99) (453.71)
Decrease/(Increase) in loans 95,562.61 (1,53,367.78)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other financial assets (714.31) 275.03
Decrease/(Increase) in Other non-financial assets (11.80) (20,000.00)
Increase /(Decrease) in Other financial liabilities (2,802.80) 1,306.51
Increase /(Decrease) in non-financial liabilities (1,649.25) 825.15
Cash used in operations- 1,79,059.28 (76,266.09)
Income tax paid (22,821.92) (26,217.66)
Cash Flow Before Extraordinary Items 1,56,237.36 (1,02,483.75)
Extraordinary items - -
Net cash used in operating activities (A) 1,56,237.36 (1,02,483.75)
B) Cash flow from investing activities:
Sale of property, plant and equipment 500.00 -
Sale/(purchase) of investment (Net) 18,855.33 3,941.24
Investment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 3 months) (7,689.26) (7,100.77)
Net cash from / (used in) investing activities (B) 11,666.07 (3,159.53)
C}) Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 65,912.90 77,620.31
Net cash from financing activities (C) 65,912.90 77,620.31
Netincrease/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+(C) 2,33,816.33 (28,022.97)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year (refer note no. 3) 9,191.77 37,214.74
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (refer note no. 3)
- Cash and cash equivalents 2,43,008.10 9,191.77
243,008.10 9191.,77
As per our report of even date
For Nagar Goel & Chawla On behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants For MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDINGS LTD

egistration No. : 009933N
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Daulat Ram Agarwala
Managing Director

Lalit Agarwal
Director

Membership No. 515984
Place :New Delhi

Date: 25.08.2020

Dhiion an "
-Aashish Agarwal Plja

" Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

DIN : 0000586956 ~ DIN: 00001099
P .
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PAN NO. AEIPAG655G PAN NO. DUGMP5770C




MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDINGS LTD

CIN: L65929WB1990PLC048280

Notes on the financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2020
(All amount are in rupees hundred, unless otherwise stated)

1. Background

MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDING LIMITED. (“The Company”) was incorporated on 29th }anuary,
1990 under Registrar of Companies under the provision of the Companies Act, 1956. The main
objects of the company are to provide the fund based financial services etc.

The Company is a Non-Systemically Important (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Non-Banking
Finance Company (NBFC) registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements .

The accompanying financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS') as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended from time to time and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act) along with guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI') as applicable to a Non Banking
Finance Company (‘NBFC"). The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis. The Company uses accrual basis of accounting except in case of significant uncertainties.
The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent
with those used in the previous year. The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees.

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company had prepared
its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and the NBFC
Master Directions (hereinafter referred as ‘Previous GAAP’). These financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2020 are the first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS.
The Company has applied Ind AS 101 ‘First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards’, for
transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS. An explanation of how transition to Ind AS has
affected the previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company is provided in Note no. 37.

2.2 Presentation of financial statements

The Company presents its Balance Sheet in order of liquidity.

The Company generally reports financial assets and financial liabilities on a gross basis in the
Balance Sheet. They are offset and reported net only when Ind AS specifically permits the
same or it has an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
without being contingent on a future event. Similarly, the Company offsets incomes and
expenses and reports the same on a net basis when permitted by Ind AS specifically unless
they are material in nature.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires Management to make use of
estimates and judgments. In view of the inherent uncertainties and a level of subjectivity
involved in measurement of items, it is possible that the outcomes in the subsequent financial
years could differ from those on which the Management’s estimates are based. Accounting
estimates and judgments are used in various line items in the financial statements for e.g.:

Business model assessment [Refer note no.2.13]

Fair value of financial instruments [Refer note no.2.14 & 36]

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) [Refer note no. 2.4]

Impairment on financial assets [Refer note no.2.13 & 35(c)]

Provisions and other contingent liabilities [Refer note no. 2.8]

Provision for tax expenses [Refer note no. 2.10]

Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment and Investment
Property [Refer note n0.2.6]

2.3 Current/ Non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) itis expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s
normal operating cycle;

(b) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c) itisexpected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(d) it is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) itisexpected to be settled in, the company’s normal operating cycle;

(b) itisheld primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c) itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Operating cycle
Based on the nature of activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of

assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as
current and non-current,
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2.4 Revenue recognition

Interest income

The Company recognises interest income using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) on all  financial
assets subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI). EIR is calculated by considering all costs and incomes attributable to
acquisition of a financial asset or assumption of a financial liability and it represents a rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments/receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset/financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the
amortised cost of a financial liability.

The Company recognises interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of
financial assets other than credit-impaired assets. In case of credit-impaired financial assets
regarded as ‘stage 3’, the Company recognises interest income on the amortised cost net of
impairment loss of the financial asset at EIR. If the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Delayed payment interest (penal interest) levied on customers for delay in repayments/non-
payment of contractual cash flows is recognised on realisation.

Interest on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
is recognised at the contractual rate of interest.

2.5 Inventories

Raw material, packing materials, stores and spares, finished goods, semi-finished goods &
stocks in process are valued at cost or market price whichever is lower in accordance with
valuation principles laid out in Ind AS-2.

2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property

Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost of acquisition less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, consistent with the criteria specified in Ind AS 16
‘Property, Plant and Equipment’

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation / amortisation are provided over the useful life of the assets, pro rata for the
period of use, on a written-down method. The useful life estimates prescribed in Part C of
Schedule II to the 2013 Act have been considered as useful life for tangible assets. Acquired
intangible assets are amortised over a period as per management estimates of their useful life.
Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from the month in which asset is ready for use.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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2.7

2.8

Gains / losses on disposal of assets

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included under other income in
the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Investment Property

Investment property is the property that is not occupied by the Company, and which is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation, or both. Upon initial recognition, an investment
property is measured at cost, including directly attributable overheads, if any. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss, if any. Investment property needs to be valued at Fair value but
as an exception, in the instant case, there is a clear evidence that, fair value of investment
property is not reliably measurable, as the market for comparable properties is inactive and
alternate reliable measurements of fair value cannot be applied.

The Management has decided to convert the immovable property held previously as
investments into investment property, to be recognized/ classified as per INDAS.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or loss, unless
any other standard specifically requires otherwise.

Company depreciates the investment property using the straight-line method over the useful
lives of assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11 of the Company Act,2013.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
investment properties recognised as at 01 April 2018 measured as per the previous GAAP and
use that carrying value as the deemed cost of investment properties

Impairment of non- financial assets

An assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date to ascertain whether there is any indication
that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable
amount of asset is determined. If the carrying value of relevant asset is higher than the
recoverable amount, the carrying value is written down accordingly.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event
that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow
of resources. The Company also discloses present obligations for which a reliable estimate
cannot be made. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of
which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.
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2.9 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss‘for the period
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.10 Taxes

i) Currenttax .

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities, in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the
Income Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS) prescribed therein. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at
the reporting date. Current tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in other equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet approach on temporary differences between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets, if any, are reassessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised either in OCI or in other equity. Deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.11

2.12

2.13

iii) Employee benefits

i) Short Term Employee Benefits: (i.e. benefits payable within one year) are recognized in
the period in which employee services are rendered.

ii) Contributions towards provident fund are recognized as expense. Provident Fund
contributions in respect of all employees are made to Provident Fund Authorities.

iii) Provision for gratuity payable has been made in accordance with the period of qualifying
service put in by the each employee of the Company from the date of joining and up to the
end of the financial year.

iv) Contribution to Central Government Employees State Insurance Scheme for eligible
employees is recognized as charge for the year.

Finance costs

Borrowing costs on financial liabilities are recognised using the EIR.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, other short term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Trade receivables and payables,
loan receivables, investments in securities and subsidiaries, debt securities and other-
borrowings, preferential and equity capital etc. are some examples of financial instruments.

All the financial instruments are recognised on the date when the Company becomes party to
the contractual provisions of the financial instruments. For tradable securities, the Company
recognises the financial instruments on settlement date.

(i) Financial assets

Financial assets include cash, or an equity instrument of another entity, or a contractual right
to receive cash or another financial asset from another entity. Few examples of financial assets
are loan receivables, investment in equity and debt instruments, trade receivables and cash
and cash equivalents.

Initial measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value including transaction costs that are

attributable to the acquisition of financial assets except in the case of financial assets recorded
at FVTPL where the transaction costs are charged to profit or loss.
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Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into four
categories:

(a) Debt instruments at amortised cost

(b) Debt instruments at FVOCI

(c) Debt instruments at FVTPL

(d) Equity instruments designated at FVOCI

(a) Debt instruments at amortised cost

The Company measures its financial assets at amortised cost if both the following conditions
are met: . ;
e The asset is held within a business model of collecting contractual cash flows; and
e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
Sole Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

To make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies judgment and considers relevant factors
such as the nature of portfolio and the period for which the interest rate is set.

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages
groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective. The Company’s business model is
not assessed on an instrument by instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated
portfolios. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the
Company’s original expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the
remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information
when assessing newly originated financial assets going forward.

The business model of the Company for assets subsequently measured at amortised cost
category is to hold and collect contractual cash flows. However, considering the economic
viability of carrying the delinquent portfolios in the books of the Company, it may sell these
portfolios to banks and/or asset reconstruction companies.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
on effective interest rate (EIR). The expected credit loss (ECL) calculation for debt instruments

at amortised cost is explained in subsequent notes in this section.

(b) Debt instruments at FVOCI

The Company subsequently classifies its financial assets as FVOC], only if both of the following
criteria are met:

e The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets; and

e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.
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Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured at each reporting date at
fair value with such changes being recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). The
interest income on these assets is recognised in profit or loss. The ECL calculation for debt
instruments at FVOCI is explained in subsequent notes in this section.

Debt instruments such as long term investments in Government securities to meet regulatory
liquid asset requirement of the Company’s deposit program and mortgage loans portfolio
where the Company periodically resorts to partially selling the loans by way of assignment to
willing buyers are classified as FVOCI.

On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified to profit or loss.

(c) Debt instruments at FVTPL

The Company classifies financial assets which are held for trading under FVTPL category. Held
for trading assets are recorded and measured in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Interest and
dividend incomes are recorded in interest income and dividend income, respectively according
to the terms of the contract, or when the right to receive the same has been established. Gain
and losses on changes in fair value of debt instruments are recognised on net basis through
profit or loss.

The Company’s investments into mutual funds, Government securities (trading portfolio) and
certificate of deposits for trading and short term cash flow management have been classified
under this category.

(d) Equity investments designated under FVOCI

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’ are measured at fair
value. The Company has strategic investments in equity for which it has elected to present
subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The classification is
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

All fair value changes of the equity instruments, excluding dividends, are recognised in OCI and
not available for reclassification to profit or loss, even on sale of investments. Equity
instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset)
when:

e The right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under an assignment arrangement and the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. Once the asset-is-..

derecognised, the Company does not have any continuing involvement in the’s ,éme
[/
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The Company transfers its financial assets through the partial assignment route and
accordingly derecognises the transferred portion as it neither has any continuing involvement
in the same nor does it retain any control. If the Company retains the right to service the
financial asset for a fee, it recognises either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that
servicing contract. A service liability in respect of a service is recognised at fair value if the fee
to be received is not expected to compensate the Company adequately for performing the
service. If the fees to be received are expected to be more than adequate compensation for the
servicing, a service asset is recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the
basis of an allocation of the carrying amount of the larger financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between:
e the carrying amount (measured at the date of derecognition) and
. e the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

ECL is recognised for financial assets held under amortised cost, debt instruments measured at
FVOCI, and certain loan commitments.

Financial assets where no significant increase in credit risk has been observed are considered
to be in ‘stage 1’ and for which a 12 month ECL is recognised.

Financial assets that are considered to have significant increase in credit risk are considered to
be in ‘stage 2’ and those which are in default or for which there is an objective evidence of
impairment are considered to be in ‘stage 3'. Lifetime ECL is recognised for stage 2 and stage 3
financial assets.

At initial recognition, allowance (or provision in the case of loan commitments) is required for
ECL towards default events that are possible in the next 12 months, or less, where the
remaining life is less than 12 months.

In the event of a significant increase in credit risk, allowance (or provision) is required for ECL
towards all possible default events over the expected life of the financial instrument (‘lifetime
ECL").

Financial assets (and the related impairment loss allowances) are written off in full, when
there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

Treatment of the different stages of financial assets and the methodology of
determination of ECI,

(a) Credit impaired (stage 3)

The Company recognises a financial asset to be credit impaired and in stage 3 by
considering relevant objective evidence, primarily whether:

¢ Contractual payments of either principal or interest are past due for more than 90

days;
¢ The loan is otherwise considered to be in default. f,\
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Restructured loans, where repayment terms are renegotiated as compared to the original
contracted terms due to significant credit distress of the borrower, are classified as credit
impaired. Such loans continue to be in stage 3 until they exhibit regular payment of
renegotiated principal and interest over a minimum observation period, typically 12 months-
post renegotiation, and there are no other indicators of impairment. Having satisfied the
conditions of timely payment over the observation period these loans could be transferred to
stage 1 or 2 and a fresh assessment of the risk of default is done for such loans.

Interest income is recognised by applying the EIR to the net amortised cost amount i.e. gross
carrying amount less ECL allowance.

(b) Significant increase in credit risk (stage 2)

An assessment of whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition is
performed at each reporting period by considering the change in the risk of default of the
loan exposure. However, unless identified at an earlier stage, 30 days past due is
considered as an indication of financial assets to have suffered a significant increase in
credit risk. Based on other indications such as borrower’s frequently delaying payments
beyond due dates though not 30 days past due are included in stage 2 for mortgage loans.

The measurement of risk of defaults under stage 2 is computed on homogenous portfolios,
generally by nature of loans, tenors, underlying collateral, geographies and borrower
profiles. The default risk is assessed using PD (probability of default) derived from past
behavioural trends of default across the identified homogenous portfolios. These past
trends factor in the past customer behavioural trends, credit transition probabilities and
macroeconomic conditions. The assessed PDs are then aligned considering future
economic conditions that are determined to have a bearing on ECL.

(c) Without significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition (stage 1)

ECL resulting from default events that are possible in the next 12 months is recognised for
financial instruments in stage 1.-The Company has ascertained default possibilities on past
behavioural trends  witnessed for each  homogenous  portfolioc  using
application/behaviourial score cards and other performance indicators, determined
Statistically.

(d) Measurement of ECL

The assessment of credit risk and estimation of ECL are unbiased and probability weighted.
It incorporates all information that is relevant including information about past events,
current conditions and reasonable forecasts of future events and economic conditions at
the reporting date. In addition, the estimation of ECL takes into account the time value of
money. Forward looking economic scenarios determined with reference to external
forecasts of economic parameters that have demonstrated a linkage to the performance of
our portfolios over a period of time have been applied to determine impact of macro
economic factors.

Measurement of expected credit losses are based on 3 main parameters:
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(i)

Probability of default (PD): It is defined as the probability of whether borrowers will
default on their obligations in future. Since the company don’t have any history of past
losses therefore it was not adequate enough to create our own internal model through
which actual defaults for each grade could be estimated. Hence, the default study published
by one of the recognised rating agency is used for estimating the PDs for each range grade.

Loss given default (LGD): It is the magnitude of the likely loss, if there is a default. The
LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account,
among other attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral value. The default study
published by one of the recognised ratling agency is used for estimating the LGD for sccured
and unsecured loans.

Exposure at default (EAD): EAD represents the expected balance at default, taking into
account the repayment of principal and interest from the Balance Sheet date to the date of
default together with any expected drawdowns of committed facilities.

Write offs - The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written-off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the asset in its
entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off and when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery from the collaterals held. However, financial assets that are
written-off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Company'’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

The Company has calculated ECL using three main components: a probability of default
(PD), a loss given default (LGD) and the exposure at default (EAD). ECL is calculated by
multiplying the PD, LGD and EAD and adjusted for time value of money using a rate which
is a reasonable approximation of EIR.

¢ Determination of PD is covered above for each stages of ECL.

e EAD représents the expected balance at default, taking into accourit the repayment
of principal and interest from the Balance Sheet date to the date of default together
with any expected drawdowns of committed facilities.

e LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into
account, among other attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time
it is expected to be realised and the time value of money.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities include liabilities that represent a contractual obligation to deliver
cash or another financial assets to another entity, or a contract that may or will be
settled in the entities own equity instruments. Few examples of financial liabilities are
trade payables, debt securities and other borrowings and subordinated debts..

Initial measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial
liabilities include trade payables, other payables, debt securities and other borrofvy%jng
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Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, all financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR. Any gains or losses arising on derecognition of liabilities are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition o
The Company derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

(iii)  Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
Balance, Sheet only if there is an enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
with an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

2.14 Fair value measurements

The Company measures its qualifying financial instruments at fair value on each Balance Sheet
date.

Fair value is the price that would be received against sale of an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place in the accessible principal market or the most advantageous
accessible market as applicable.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured -or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy into Level I, Level Il and Level 1l
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

For assets and liabilities that are fair valued in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy
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3 |Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand #

Balances with banks

- in Current account

- in Term Deposits- Original maturity of 3 months or less

# Cash Balance on hand including imprest with employee

4 |Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Fixed deposit with bank (Maturity less than 12 months)

3

4.1 |Fixed deposits with banks earns interest at fixed rates.
5 |Receivables

Trade Receivables
Considered good-unsecured

Other receivable
Considered good-unsecured

6 Loans

Loans given in India to other than public sector
Loans repayable on demand

Less: Impairment loss allowance

Net

6.1 |Breakup ofloans into secured and unsecured
Secured

Unsecured

Gross

Less: Impairment loss allowance

Net

7 |Investments

{i) Quoted
At fair value through Profit & loss L 10, Quantity (Numbers)
(FVPL) March  31stMarch 1stApril
2020 2029 2018
Equity Shares
Bharti Airtel Ltd. - 345 345
Divi'A Laboraties - 60 -
Maruti Suzuki India Ltd. 31 31 -
Motilal Oswal Financial Services Ltd. 195 195 -
Nestle India Ltd. - 9 -
Solar Induatries Ltd. 225 225 -
Indian Oil Corporation Ltd. 800 800 800
Yes Bank 780 780
RBL Bank 150 - -
HDFC Asset Management Company Ltc 30 - -
Praj industries Ltd. 720 - -
Larsen & Toubro Ltd. 70 - -

Aarti Industries Ltd. 114 - -

Asat31st As at 31st March As at 1st April
March 2020 2019 2018
731.89 231.88 56.89
2,42,276.21 8,959.89 37,157.85
2,43,008.10 9,191.77 37,214.74
Asat 31st As at 31st March As at 1st April
March 2020 2019 2018
1,29,637.60 1,21,948.34 1,14,847.57
1,29,637.60 1,21,948.34 1,14,847.57
As at 31st As at 31st March As at 1st April
March 2020 2019 2018
11,850.00 458.01 4.30
11,850.00 458.01 4.30
Asat31st As at 31st March As at 1st April
March 2020 2019 2018
17,13,531.14 18,09,093.75 16,55,725.97
(1,02,106.31) (44,269.00) (37,343.30)
16,11,424.83 17,64,824.75 16,18,382.67
17,13,531.14 18,09,093.75 16,55,725.97
17,13,531.14 18,09,093.75 16,55,725.97
(1,02,106.31) (44,269.00) (37,343.30)
16,11,424.83 17,64,824.75 16,18,382.67
As at 31st As at 31st March As at 1st April
March 2020 2019 2018
- 1,149.19 1,375.52
- 1,021.86 -
1,341.82 2,068.49 -
946.14 1,174.09 -
- 986.48 -
2,025.34 2,440.35 -
614.40 1,302.80 696.08
175.11 2,145.78 -
225.15 - -
614.73 - -
403.92 - -
559.05 - -
830.49 -




MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDINGS LTD
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Notes on financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020
All amounts are in Rupees hundred, unless otherwise stated

Mutual Funds

Nippon Reliance arbitrage fund - 53,70,761 53,70,761 53,70,761 5,73,097.82 5,70,455.40 5,68,231.90
monthly dividend plan(AFMPD)

(Formerly Reliance arbitrage fund up to March-2019)

Aditya Birla Mutual fund 100 100 100 190.00 190.00 5,760.00
Reliance mutual fund ETF liquid bees 867 1,266 2,454 8,670.00 12,658.39 24,536.08
Total(i) 5,89,603.97 5,95,592.83 6,00,599.58
(ii) Un-quoted- At fair value through other comprehensive income {FVOCI)*

Equity Shares

Advance Hightech Agro Products 50,000 50,000 50,000 25,062.67 24,220.84 22,969.74
Limited (Face Value Rs. 10/-)

Tirupati Structurals Limited (Face 14,47,900 14,47,900 14,47,900 26,61,433.02 26,10,601.39 24,91,967.98
Value Rs. 10/- each)

Farsight Securities Limited (Face 45,000 45,000 - 7,469.43 7,435.05
value Rs. 10/- each) .

Total(ii) 26,86,495.69 26,42,291.66 25,22,372.77

* The company has designated certain unquoted equity instruments as FVOCI on the basis that these are not held for trading,

Total(i+ii) 32,76,189.66 37,37,884.49 31,22,972.35

Out of above Investments
in India 32,76,189.66 32,37,884.49 31,22,972.35
in outside India -

32,76,189.66 32,37,884.49 31,22,972.35

8 |Other financial assets .
Unsecured - considered good (unless Asat31st As at 31st March As at 1st April
otherwise stated) March 2020 2019 2018
At amortised cost
Interest accrued and but not due 5,267.75 4,553.44 4,828.47

5,267.75 4,553.44 4,828.47
9 |[Currenttax assets (Net)
As at 31st As at 31st March As at 1st April
March 2020 2019 2018
Advance tax & TDS . 37,594.00 30,726.28 25,419.95
37,594.00 30,726.28 25,419.95

i s
L New Delhi

WO
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Notes on financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020
All amounts are in Rupees hundred, unless otherwise stated

Asat31st As at 3Tst March As atTstApril
10 |Investment Property March 2020 2019 2018

Gross Carrying amount . ] ; ;
Opening Gross Carrying Amount 6,61,086.91 6,61,086.91 6,61,086.91
Addition/Deletion
Closing Gross Carrying Amount 6,61,086.91 6,61,086.91 ,61,
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Accumulated Depreciation 11,018.12 - -
Depreciation Charge 11,018.12 11,018.12
Closing Accumulated Depreciation 22,036.24 11,018.12
Net Carrying Amount 6,39,050.67 6,50,06879 — 6,61,086.97]
Fair Value 6,65,000.00 6,98,250.00 7,33,162.50
Details of Rental income derived from Investment Property:

Rental income derived from investment properties 10,420.00 5,850.00 . -

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance)

generating rental income 1,778.78 11,722.18

Income arising from investment properties before depreciation 8,641.22 (5,872.18) -

Depreciation 11,018.12 11,018.12

Income arising from investment properties (Net) (2,376.90) (16,890.30) -

Note
Premises given on Residential Rental basis

Estimation of Fair Value

The Company has given investment properties on residential rental basis. These rental arrangements are for 11 months period.

12 |Other non-financial assets .
As at 31st As at 31st March As at 1st April
Particulars March 2020 2019 2018
Other advances recoverable 20,011.80 20,000.00
20,011.80 20,000.00 -

The fair valuation is based on current prices in the active market for similar properties as declared and provided by the management. The
main inputs used by the management in determining the fair value are quantum, area, location, demand, restrictive entry to the complex, age
of building and trend of fair market rent in Flats in Jaypee Greens Noida U.P.

Carrying value

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property as recognised in the financial statements as at "the date of}
transition to Ind AS i.e. 1st April, 2018, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of 'transition. The
carrying value as at 1st April, 2018 amounting to Rs 6,61,08,691 of Investment Property represents gross cost of 6,61,08,691 net of
accumulated depreciation of Rs. NIL 7 as at March 31, 2018.

The Company’s investment property consists of 7 properties as at 31st March, 2020,2019 & 2018. Company has let out four property as of
31st March, 2019 and six as of 31st March,2020.
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Notes on financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020
All amounts are in Rupees hundred, unless otherwise stated

Note-11
Particulars

Vehicles| 1¢a) Tangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Deemed cost as at April 01, 2018 530.37 530.37

Additions - -

Disposals - .

Gross carrying amountas at
March 31,2019 530.37 530.37
Additions -

Disposals 530.37 530.37
Gross carrying amount gs at

March 31,2020 - -

Accumulated depreciation /amortisation and impairment
Balance as at April 01,2018 - . -

Depreciation for the year - -

Depreciation on disposals - -
Balance as at March 31,2019 - -
Depreciation for the year -
Depreciation on disposals . -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 - -
Net carrying amount
As at April 01, 2018 530.37 530.37
As at March 31,2019 530.37 530.37

As at March 31, 2020 - -

Useful Life of the asset (In Years) 8 8

Method of Depreciation Written down value
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Notes on financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020
All amounts are in Rupees hundred, unless otherwise stated

13

14

15

16

17

Borrowings (other than Debt Securities)
Particulars

(A) In India

(At amortised cost)

Inter corporate deposits

Outside India

(B)Out of above

Secured

Unsecured

From related parties
Inter corporate deposits
L]

Other financial liabilities
Particulars

Employee benefits payable
Other liabilities

Current tax liabilities (Net)

For Income Tax

Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

Particulars

Deferred tax relates to the following:
Deferred tax liabilities:
- Related to Investment

Deferred tax assets:

- Related to property, plant and equipment

- Related to investment properties

- Related to impairment of financial instruments

Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

Other non-financial liabilities

Particulars

Statutory dues

As at 31stMarch  Asat 31st March As at 1st April
2020 2019 2018
9,81,369.72 9,15,456.82 8,37,836.51

9,81,369.72 9,15,456.82 8,37,836.51
9,81,369.72 9,15,456.82 8,37,836.51
9,81,369.72 9,15,456.82 8,37,836.51

As at 31st March  Asat 31st March As at 1st April
2020 2019 2018

- 2,850.00 2,400.00
5,553.73 5,506.53 4,650.02
5,553.73 8,356.53 7,050.02

Asat31istMarch Asat 31st March As at 1st April

2020 2019 2018
17,412.57 16,625.94 21,000.00
17,412.57 16,625.94 21,000.00

Asat31stMarch Asat 31st March As at 1st April
2020 2019 2018
6,67,280.90 6,54,480.33 6,24,567.29

6,67,280.90 6,54,480.33 6,24,567.29
- 780.16 847.65

5,546.08 2,773.04 -
25,698.12 9,990.76 8,356.78
31,244.20 13,543.96 9,204.43
6,36,036.70 6,40,936.37 6,15,362.86

Asat31stMarch Asat 31st March As at 1st April
2020 2019 2018

7,993.65 9,642.90 8,817.75
7,993.65 9,642.90 8,817.75
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Balance sheet as at 31st March 2020

All amounts are in Rupees hundred, unless otherwise stated

Equity Share capital
18 |Particulars As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019 As at 1st April 2018
Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised share capital 1,01,00,000 10,10,000.00 1,01,00,000  10,10,000.00 1,01,00,000 10,10,000.00
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up___1,00,00,600 10,00,060.00 1,00,00,600 10,00,060.00 1,00,00,600 10,00,060.00
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
a) |Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period
As at 1st April 2018
Particulars As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019 s p
Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
At the beginning of the year 1,00,00,600  10,00,060.00 1,00,00,600  10,00,060.00 1,00,00,600 10,00,060.00
Add/lees:- - - - - - -
1,00,00,600 10,00,060.00 1,00,00,600 10,00,060.00 1,00,00,600 10,00,060.00

b)

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares, having a par value of Rs.10 per share, All shares rank pari passu with respect to dividend,
voting rights and other terms. Each shareholder is eligible to one vote per share. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors is
subject to approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. The repayment of equity
share capital in the event of liquidation and buy back of shares are possible subject to prevalent regulations. In the event of liquidation,
normally the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts,
in proportion to their shareholding.

¢) [The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares
As at 1st April 2018
Name of shareholder As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019 sat 1st Apri
No.of shares (%) No. of shares (%) No. of shares (%)
Advance Ispat{ India) Ltd. 19,43,400 19.43% 19,43,400 19.43% 19,43,400 19.43%
Daulat Ram Agrawal 5,12,500 5.12% 5,12,500 5.12% 5,12,500 0.05
Sneha Aparwal - - 5,45,000 5.45% 5,45,000 5.45%
Total 24,55,900 24.56% 30,00,900 30.01% 30,00,900 30.01%
19 |Other equity

Asat 31st Asat31st  Asat1stApril

Particulars March 2020 March 2019 2018
atory Reserve under Section 45-1C of the RBI Act, 1934 )

Balance as per last year 2,86,073.22 2,55,283.72 2,55,283.72
Add: Transferred from profit and loss account 15,300.07 30,789.50

3,01,373.29 2,86,073.22 2,55,283.72
Retained earnings
Balance as per last year 29,63,034.46  28,39,876.47  28,39,876.47
Add ; Profit for the year 76,500.36 1,53,947.49 -
Less : Appropriations - Transferred to statutory reserve 15,300.07 30,789.50 -

30,24,234.75 29,63,034.46 28,39,876.47

Other equity 33,25,608.04 32,49,107.68 30,95,160.19

Statutory Reserve: :
Statutory Reserve is the reserve created by transferring a sum not less than twenty per cent of the Company’s net profit after tax every year
in terms of Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934.

Retained earnings:
Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, statutory reserve, debenture
redemption reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.
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20 |Revenue from operations

Year ended 31st Year ended 31st

March 2020 March 2019
On financial assets measured as amortised cost
Interest on loans 1,51,327.17 1,69,853.09
Interest on deposits with banks 9,404.72 13,232.47
Dividend from Equity Shares 172.77 -
Dividend from Mutual Funds 28,531.88 29,229.37
1,89,436.54 2,12,314.93

21 Other income

Year ended 31st Year ended 31st

March 2020 March 2019
Rental Income 10,420.00 5,850.00
Miscellaneous Income 229.47 -
10,649.47 5,850.00

22 Finance costs
Year ended 31st  Year ended 31st

March 2020 March 2019
On financial liabilities measured as amortised cost
Interest paid on loans 73,236.55 91,823.34
73,236.55 91,823.34

23 |Impairment of financial instruments
Year ended 31st  Year ended 31st

March 2020 March 2019
On financial instruments measured at amortised cost
Provisions for expected credit loss 57,837.31 6,925.70
57,837.31 6,925.70

24 |Employee benefits expense
Year ended 31st  Year ended 31st

March 2020 March 2019
Salary, wages and other benefits 13,320.00 12,840.00
13,320.00 12,840.00

24.1 |Salary includes Director remuneration of Rs.6,00,000( previous year Rs. 6,00,000 )
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25 Depreciation and amortization
Year ended 31st  Year ended 31st
March 2020 March 2019
Deprecation and amortization 11,018.12 11,018.12
11,018.12 11,018.12
26 |Other expenses
Year ended 31st  Year ended 31st
March 2020 March 2019
Repairs & maintenance
- Building 1,653.38 11,715.22
- Office 125.40 -
Travelling & conveyance 35.00 20.00
Rates fees & taxes 1,661.27 735.49
Depository charges 1,062.00 1,062.00
Rent paid 1,080.00 1,080.00
Loss on sale/fair valuation of financial instruments 3,439.05 2,650.18
General & other expenses 521.61 443.75
Bank charges 3.66 29.94
Legal & professional charges 580.00 384.00
Statutory audit fees 767.00 767.00
Internal audit fees 300.00 250.00
Printing & stationery 22.80 205.81
Postage & courier 55.00 75.00
Loss on sale of motor vehicle 30.37 -
11,336.54 19,418.39
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27 Basic and Diluted Earnings per share [EPS] computed in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 33 “Earnings

28

29

30

31

per Share”
Asat31stMarch| Asat3TstMarch
Particulars 2020 2019
Basic
Profit after tax A 33,754.16 64,209.80
Weighted average number of cquity sharcs outstanding B 1,00,00,600 1,00,00,600
Basic earning per share (Rs) A/B 0.34 0.64
Diluted
Profit after tax (Rs. In Lakhs) A 33,754.16 64,209.80
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding B 1,00,00,600 1,00,00,600
Add: Weighted average number of potential equity shares C - i
Weighted average number of shares outstanding for diluted EPS D=B+C 1,00,00,600 1,00,00,600
Diluted earning per share (before and after extraordinary items) (Rs) . A/D 0.34 0.64
Face value of shares {(Rs) 10.00 10.00
Auditors Remuneration
: As at 31stMarch| Asat31stMarch
Particulars 2020 2019
Payment to auditors (net of GST credit availed)
Statutory audit 767.00 767.00
767.00 767.00
Expenditure in foreign currency:
Particul As at 31st March| Asat31stMarch
articulars 2020 2019
Note :

i) There are no reportable earnings in foreign currency during the year ended 31st March 2020. (31st March 2019: Nil)

ii) The Company do not have any exposures in foreign currency as at the Balance Sheet date.

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment”

The Company operates mainly in the business segment of Lending activity. As such there are no reportable segments as per Ind AS
108 on Operating Segment. Since the husiness operations of the Company are concentrated in India, the Company is considered to
operate only in the domestic segment and therefore there is no reportable geographic segment.

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
Particulars Asat31st | Asat3istMarch| Asat1stApril
March 2020 2019 2018
Contingent labilities
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt
- Income Tax matters - - -
CIT(appeals) Kolkata AY 2011-12 19,780.39 19,780.39 -
IT(appellate tribunal} Kolkata AY 2012-13 23,488.92 23,488.92 -
CIT(appeals) Kolkata AY 2014-15 15,072.65 15,072.65 15,072.65
Guarantees
- Bank Guarantees - - -
58,341.96 58,341.96 15,072.65
Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts(net of advances) remaining to be executed - - -
Undrawn committed sanctions to borrowers - - -
58,341.96 58,341.96 15,072.65
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32 Disclosure of Related party transactions pursuant to (Ind AS - 24) and Companies act 2013
“Related Party Disclosures”

a. Name of related parties and relationship
i) Key Managerial Personnels/Director
Aashish Agarwal
Lalit Agarwal
Daulat Ram Agarwala
Kamlesh Gupta
Puja Mantri

ii) Others
Tak Buildtech Pvt Ltd
Advance Steel Tubes Ltd.
Tirupati Structurals Ltd.
Shyama devi Agarwal
Devaki Nandan Agarwal
b. Transaction with related parties

Particulars As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019
Key Rkey
Management Management
personal Others personal Others
Loan given received back 21,476.28
Interest received - 1,40,226.49 - 1,68,850.35
Interest paid - 73,236.55 - 91,628.98
Salary Paid 7,320.00 6,840.00
Directors Remuneration 6,000.00 - 6,000.00 -
Rent paid 1,080.00 1,080.00
Sale of shares 10,800.00
Sitting fees 225.00
C. Closing balance with related parties
Particulars ' As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019
Key Key
Management Others Management Others
personal personal
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) - 9,81,369.72 - 9,15,456.82
Other Receivable 10,800.00
Other financial liabilities - - 2,850.00
Loans given - 15,37,893.09 - 15,59,369.38
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33

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

47

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 'Income Taxes'

Tax Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Forthe year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
Current tax:
In respect of current year 17,412.57 16,625.94
In respect of short/(excess) provision of income tax for earlier years -671.74 -88.67
Deferred Tax:
Deferred tax liability/(assets) relating to origination and reversal of (17,157.50) (4,607.69)
temporary differences
Total Incomte Tax recognised in profit or loss
Current tax 16,740.83 16,537.27
Deferred tax (17,157.50) (4,607.69)
Total Income Tax recognised in profit or loss (416.67) 11,929.58

Income Tax recognised in Other comprehensive income

. For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2020 | 31stMarch 2019
Deferred tax related to items recognised in Other comprehensive income
during the year:
Fair value of equity instruments 12,257.83 30,181.20
Total Income tax recognised in Other comprehensive income 12,257.83 30,181.20

Reconciliation of effective tax rate :
The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at tax rate to income tax ex

ense reported in profit or loss is as follows

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

31st March 2020 | 31stMarch 2019

Profit before Tax 33,337.49 76,139.38
Enacted income tax rate (%) 25.17% 26.00%
Income tax expense calculated at applicable income tax rate 8,390.38 19,796.24
Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to
reported income tax expense:
Expenses that are not deductible for tax purposes 17,797.57 4,942.43
Dividend income exempt from income tax -7,224.39 -7,599.64
Deductions available under income tax {1,695.56) (513.09)
Interest u/s 234B & 234C 144,58
Income tax for earlier year -671.74 -88.67
Income Tax expense recognised ir: profit and loss 16,740.83 16,537.27
Deferred Tax recognised in profit and loss (17,157.50) (4,607.69)
‘fax recognised in profit and loss -416.67 11,929.58
Actual effective income tax rate (%) -1.25% 15.67%
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Particulars Asat Asat As ?t

31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 1st April 2018
Deferred Tax Asset :
Related to property, plant and equipment - 780.16 847.65
Related to investment properties 5,546.08 2,773.04 -
Related to impairment of financial instruments 25,698.12 9,990.76 8,356.78
Deferred Tax Liability:
Related to Investment 6,67,280.90 6,54,480.33 6,24,567.29
Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) -6,36,036.70 -6,40,936.37 -6,15,362.86

Movement in temporary differences

. For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2020 | 31stMarch 2019
Credit / (Charge) in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period
Loans 15,707.36 1,635.98
Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible assets -780.16 -67.49
Investment properties 2,773.04 2,773.04
Investment -542.74 268.16
Total (a) 17,157.50 4,607.69
Credit / (Charge) in the other comprehensive income during the period A
Praovisions - Investment (12,257.83) (30,181.20%
Total (b) (12,257.83) -30,181,20
Net deferred income tax asset at the beginning (c) -6,40,936.37 -6,15,367.86
Net deferred tax asset/(Liabilities) at the end of the period {d) = (a) + (b} -6,36,036.70 -6,40,936.37

§

O»/
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34 Maturity Analysis of Assets & Liabilities

Asat Asat As at
31st March 2020 31stMarch 2019 : 1st April 2018
Within 12 Months| After 12 months Total Within 12 Months| After 12 months Total Within 12 Months| After 12 months Tolal
Assets
Financial Assets
Cash & cash equivalents 2,43,008.10 - 2,43,008.10 9,191.77 - 9,191.77 37,214.74 - 37,214.74
Bank balances other than Cash &
cash equivalents 1,29,637.60 - 1,29,637.60 1,21,948.34 - 1,21,948.34 1,14,847.57 - 1,14,847.57
Receivables - -
- Trade Receivables - - - - - - - -
- Other Receivables 11,850.00 11,850.00 458.01 - 458,01 4.30 - 4.30
Loans 16,11,424.83 - 16,11,424.83 17,64,824.75 - 17,64,824,75 16,18,382.67 - 16,18,382.67
Investments 16,596.15 32,59,593.51} 32,76,189.66 25,137.43 32,12,747.66 ) 32,37,884.49 32,367.63 30,90,604.67 | 31,22,972.35
Other financial assets 5,267.75 - 5,267.75 4,553.44 - 4,553.44 4,828.47 - 4,828.47
- 2] el
Current tax assets 37,594.00 - 37.594.00 30,726.28 - 30,726.28 25,419.95 - 25,41995
Investment property 6,39,056.67 6,39,050.67 6,50,068.79 6,50,068.79 6,61,086.91 6,61,086.91
Property, plant and equipments - - B 53037 53037 530.37 530.37
Other non-financial assets 20,011.80 - 20,611.80 20,000.00 - 20,000,00 - - -
Total Assets 20,75,390.23 38,98,644.18 | 59,74,034.41 19,76,840.02 38,63,346.22 | 58,40,186.24 18,33,065.38 37,52,221.95 | 55,85,287.33
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities R .
Borrowings (other than Debt Secu 9,81,369.72 - 9,81,369.72 9,15,456.82 - 9,15,456,82 8,37,836.51 - 8,37,836.51
Other financial liabilities 5,553.73 5,553.73 8,356.53 - 8,356.53 7,050.02 - 7,050.02
Non-Financial Liabilities
Current tax Jiabilities (net) 17,412.57 - 17,412.57 16,625.94 - 16,625.94 21,000.0C 21,000.00
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 6,36,036.70 6,36,036,70 6,40,936,37 6,40,936.37 6,15,362.86 6,15,362.87
Other non-financial liabilities 7,993.65 - 7,993.65 9,642.90 - 9,642.90 8,817.75 - 8,817.75
Total Liabilities 10,12,329.67 6,36,036.70 | 16,48,366.37 9,50,082.19 6,40,936.37 | 15,91,018.56 8,74,704.28 6,15,362.86 | 14,90,067.14
Net 10,63,060.56 32,62,607.48 | 43,25,668.04 | 10,26,757.83 32,22,409.85 | 42,49,167.68 9,58,361.10 31,36,859.09 { 40,95,220.19
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35 Financial Risk Management

The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishiment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.
The board of directors has coustituted the risk management committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk
management policies. The Company’s risk management coinmice oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk
manragement policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk managemeat framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, t¢ set appropriate risk limits and
controls and to moniter risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising fiom its business operations:

i) Creditrisk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a customer or counterparty fails to meet an obligation under a contract. Lending activities account for
most of the Company’s credit tisk. Other sources of credit risk also exist in loans and transaction settlements. Credit risk is measured as the
amount that could be lost if a customer or counterparty fails tc make repayments. The maxiimum exposure to credit risk in case of all the
financial instruments is restricted to their respective carrying amount.
Credit Risk is monitored through stringent credit appraisal. counter party limits ands internal risk ranges of the borrowers. Exposure to credit
risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of all the customers and counterparties to meet interest and capital repayment
obligations and by changing lending limits where appropriate. )
Company primarily offers loans secured by Real estate. In order to mitigate credit risk, Company also seeks collateral appropriate to the
product segment. The most common types of collateral the company receives, measured by collateral value, are niortgages on financial assets
in the form of real estate.

a) Maximum exposure to the Credit risk
This table below shows the Company’s maximum exposure to the credit risk.

Particulars Mar-20 Mar-19 Mar-18
Financial Assets at amortised cost - Loans & Advances {Gross) 17,13,531.14 18,09,093.75 16,55,725.97
Less : Iinpairment loss allowances 1,02,106.31 44,269.00 37,343.30
Financial Assets at amortised cost - Loans & Advances {Net} 16,11,424.83 17,64,824.75 16,18,382.67
Trade receivables 11,850.00 458.01 4.30
Total 16,23,274.83 17,65,282.76 16,18,386.97

Credit risk on Cash and Cash equivalents is considered to be Nil as these are generally held with leading banks.

b

()

Credit quality analysis

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date based on the facts and circumstances existing on that date to identify expected
losses on account of time value of money and credit risk. The credit quality of Loans and advances measured at amortised cost is primarily
assessed by the Days Past Due (DPD) status and other qualitative factors leading to increase in credit risk.

Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment

In assessing the impairment of financial assets under the expected credit loss model, the Company defines default when a Joan obligation is
overdue for more than 90 days and credit impaired.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company considers the DPD status of the
loans. Credit risk is deemed to have increased significantly when an asset is more than 30 days past due (DPD) and other gualitative internal
or external factors demonstrating credit or liquidity risk.

Calculation of expected credit losses

The key elements in calculation of ECL are as follows:

PD - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time
over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

EAD - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure
after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on
committed facilities. accraed interest from missed navinents and loan commitments.

LGD - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference
between the centractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is
usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD. The LGD is determined based on valuation of collaterals and other relevant factors.

For PD the Company has relied upon the PD data from industry benchmarks and external rating agencies. For Loss Given Default (LGD) the
Company has relied on internal and external information.
In relation to COVID-19, Management has applied appropriate overlay to the above method of determining ECL.
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The following table sets out information about the credit quality of financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Write-offs still under enforcement activity

Particulars Asat As at Asat
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 1st April 2018

Gross Stage 1 (DPD< 30 days) Performing asset and 12 menthh ECL 15,64,709.24 16,60,271.85 14,06,904.07
Less : Impairment loss allowance 27,695.36 24,386.81 24,902.20
Net Stage 1 Assets 15,37,013.88 16,30,885.04 13,82,001.87
ECL Prov. Coverage 1.77% 1.77% 1.77%
Gross Stage 2 (30>DPD< 90 days) Under performing assets
inccrease in credit risk and Lifetime ECL - 1,48,821.90 2,48,821.90
Less : Impairment loss allowance - 14,882.19 12,441.10
Net Stage 2 Assets - 1,33,939.71 2,36,380.80
ECL Prov. Coverage 0.00% 10.00% 5.00%
Gross Stage 3 (DPD>90) Non-performing assets credit impaired
and lifetime ECL 1,48,821.90 - -
Less : Impairment loss allowance 74,410.95 - -
Net Stage 3 Assets 74,410.95 - -
ECL Prov. Coverage 50.00% - -
Total Loans & Advances . 17,13,531.14 18,09,093.75 16,55,725.97
Less : Impairment loss allowance 1,02,106.31 44,269.00 37,343.30
Net Loans & Advaunces 16,11,424.83 17,64,824.74 16,18,382.67
ECL Provision Coverage 5.96% 245% 2.26%
Credit impairment charge to the income statement

. Fortheyéar ended | Fortheyear ended
Particulars 31st March 2020 31stMarch 2019
New and increased provisions {incl. write off) 57,837.31 6,925.70
Write-backs of specific provisions - -
Recoveries of specific provisions - -
Total charge to the income statement 57,837.31 6,925.70

Tre contractual amount outstanding on loafls and advances that were written oft during the year ended March 202U, and are stul subject to

enforcement activity was Nil,
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¢) Movemertin Gross Exposures and credit impairment for loans and advances X N . , - . N
The Campany uses ‘Expectad Credit Lass’ (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of Financial Assets measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI. Company tullows a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment based

on changes in credit quality since initial recognition. Pleasa refer to the accounting policy for details.

Movemenf in Gross Exposure to Loans & Advances Movement in ECL

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 | Total
Balance as al April 1, 2018 14,06,904.07 2,48,821.90 - 16,55,725.97 24,902.20 12,441.10 -] 37,343.30
Changes due to financial assets recngnised in opening baiance that have:
- Transferred to 12 month ECL - - - - - - -
- Transferred to lifetime ECL -significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
- Transferred to lifetime ECL credit - impaired - - - - - - - -
Increase due to financial assets originated 1,00,90247 - - 1,00,902.47 1,705.97 - - 1,785.97
Decrease due to loans derecognised on part payment - (1,00,000.00) - (1,00,000.00) - - - -
Net remeasurement {Due to recovery on regular basis changes in rating,
changes in security value etc.) 1,52,465.31 - - 15246531 |  2,698.64 2,441.09 - 5,139.73
Amounts written oif during the year - - - - - - - -
Balance as at March 31,2019 16,60,271.85 | 1,48,821,90 - 18,09,093.75 | 29,386.81 14,882.19 - 44,269.00
Changes due to financial assets recognised in opening balznce that have:
-~ Transferred to 12 month ECL - - - . - - - -
- Transferred to lifetime ECL “significant increass in credit risk B (1,48,821.90)| 1,46821.90 - - (14,382.19)] 14,882.19 -
« Transferred to lifetime ECL credit - impaired - - - - - -
Ircrease Jue to financial assets originated - - - - - - -
Decrease due to loans derecognised on part payment {95,562.61) - - (95,562.61}! (1,691.45) - (1,691.45)
Net remeasurement {Due to recovery on regu'ar basis changes in 1ating,
changes in securiiy value etc)) . - - - - - . - 59,528.76 59,528.76
Amounts written off during the year - - - - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 15,64,709.24 - 1,48,821.90 | 17,13,531.14 | 27,695.36 - 74,410.95 | 1,02,106.31
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i} Liguidity Risk

© Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will enceunter difHealties in meoting the obligations assuciated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
dclivering cash or other financial assets. The Company's approach to mansaging liquidity is to ensure, as far a5 possible, that it will have sufficient
liquidity to méet its Kabilities when they are due, under both normai and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage
to the Company’s reputation.
Company has in place an Asset-Liability Management Committee {ALCO) which functions as the operational unit for managing the Balance Sheet within
the performance and risk parameters laid down by the Board and Risk Coinmittee of the Board. ALCO reviews Asset Liability strategy and Balance Sheet
management.in relation to asset and liability profile. ALCO ensures that the objectives of liquidity management are met by monitoring the gaps in the
varjous time buckets, deciding on the source and mix of lisbilities, setting the maturity profile of the incremental assets and liabilities etc.

" - Key principles adopted in the Coinpany’s approach to managing iiquidity risk include:
a) Monitoring the Company’s liguidity position on a regular basis, using a combination of contractual and behavioural modelling of balance sheet and
cash flow information.
b} Maintaining a high quality iiguid asset portfolio or maintaining undrawit bank lines.
¢) Operating a prudent funding strategy which ensures appropriate diversification and limits maturity concentrations.

The Company'’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, liguid asset portfolio like Mutua! funds and the cash flow that is generated

from operation. R .

The following are the reraining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include
interest accrued till the reporting date.

As at Contractual cash flows
31st March 2020 Total Upto 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 years
Borrowings (Includes Interest accrued butnot
due) 9,81,369.72 9,81,369.72 - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 5,553.73 5,553.73 - -
9,86,923.45 9,86,923.45 - - -
As at Contractual cash flows
31st March 2019 Total Upto 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 years
Borrowings (Includes Interest accriied but not
due) 9,15,456.82 9,15,456.82 7,645.54 - -
Other Financial Liabilities 8,356.53 8,356.53 - - -
9,23,813.35 9,23,813.36 7,645.54 - -
As at Contractual cash flows
ist April 2018 Tetal Upto 1 year 1-3 years J 3-5 years More than 5 years
Borrowings {Includes Interest accrued butnot
due) 8,37,836.51 8,37,836.51 - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 7,050.02 7,050.02 - - -
. 8,44,886.53 6,44,886.53 - - -

iii) Market Risk . . .
Market risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of tinancial instruments wiil fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as
interestrates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

iv) Interestrate risk
Company has exposure to interest rate risk, primarily from its lending business and related borrowings. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables baing constant) of the Company's Statement of Profit and Loss.

% Increase in rate Increase/(decrease) in profit

21st Marcha 2020] 31st March 2019] 31st March 2020 3ist March 2019
Borrcwings that ace re-priced 0.25% 0.25% - -
Loans that are re-priced 0.25% 0.25% - o

Interest rate risk is managed primarily by monitoring the sensitivity of cxpected net interest incoime {‘NII') under varying interest rate scenarios. This
monitoring is undertaken by ALCO on regular basis. The NII sersitivitie:s shown are indicative and based on simplified scenarios.
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36 Financial Instruments
i} Accounting classification and fair vatu=s

The folloning table shows the carcyin
company has disclosed financial instru

unts and iarr values of financial instruments (excluding investment in subsidiaries), mcluding their levels in the fair va'ue hierarchy. The
\s hot measured at fair value at carrying values bucause their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of the fair values.

" Asat * Carrying Amount Fair value hierarchy
31st March 2020 FVTPL- FVTOodl Amortised Cost_| Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Finantial Assets 1
Cash and cash equivalents - 2,43,008,10 2,43,008.16 - - - -
Bank balances other than Cash &
cash equivaients - 1,29,637.60 1,29,637.60 - - - -
Other receivables - 11,850.00 11,850.00 - - - -
Loans - 16,11,424.83 16,11,424.83 - - - -
Investments 5,89,693.97 26,86,495.69 - 32,76,189.66 5,89,693.97 26,86,495.69 32,76,189.66
QOther financial assets 5,267.75 §,267.75
Total i 5,89,693.97 26,86,495.69 20,01,188.28 52,77,377.94 5,89,693.97 - 2.6,86,495.69 32,76.185.66
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (other than Debt
Securities) - 9,81,369.72 9,81,369.72 - - - -
Other financial liabilities 5,553.73 5,553.73
Total . 9,66,023.45 9,86,923.45 - - - -
Asat . Carrying Amount Fair value hierarchy
S1st March 2019 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level Z Level3 Total
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 9,192 9,192 - - - -
Bank balances other than Cash &
cash equivalents - 1,21,948 1,21,948.34 - - - -
Other receivables - 458 458.01 - - - -
Loans - 17,64,825 17,64,824.75 - - - -
Investments 5,89,693.97 26,48,191 . 32,37,884,49 - - - -
Other financial assets . - 4,553 4,553.44 - - - b
Total 5,89,693.97 26,48,190.52 19,00,976.31 51,38,860.80 - - hd -
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (other than Debt
Securities) - 9,15,456.82 9,15,456.82 - - - -
Other financial liabilities - 8,356.53 8,356.53 - - - hd
Total - 9,23,813.35 9,23,813.35 - - - -
Asat Carrying Amount Fair valus hierarchy
1st April 2018 FVTPL FVTOC] Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 37,215 37,215 - - - -
Bank balances other than Cash &
cash equivalents - 1,14,848 1,14,847.57 - - - M
Other receivables - 4 430 - - - -
Loans - 16,1¢€,383 16,18,382.67 - - - =
Investments 6,00,599.58 25,22,373 ] 31,22,972.35 . - - -
Other financial assets: - 4,828 4,828.47 - - - hd
Total 6,00,599.58 25,22,372.77 17,75,277.75 48,98,250.10 - - - -
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (other than Debt
Securities) - 8,37,836.51 837,836.51 - B - -
Other financial liabilities - 7,050.02 7,050.02 - - -
Total - 8,44,886.53 8,44,885,53 - - -

pa———
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37 Iad AS1C1 - Fivst Tune adoptien of Indian Account:ng Standards:

The Company hax transitioned its basis o/ accounting to Ind AS from Previous GAAP [the erstwhile Accounting Standards notified under the Act, read wit‘._}
relevant rulzs issued thereunder). These are the Comyp-any's first iinancial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. The Company has adopted all the
¢« Ind AS and the sdoption wag carcicd out w aceordance with Ind A5 101 First time adoption of Indian Accoanting Standards. Accordingly, the Signi
: Accounting Dolicies set out in. Note No 1, have heen applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financia! statements, including comoarative
information presented in the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 and the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2018,

In preparing these Ind AS Financial Statements, the Company has alse availed certain exemptions and exceptions in accordance with Ind AS 101, as explained
“ below, The resulting difference between the carrying values of the assets and liabiiities in the fimancial statements as at the transition date undcer Tnd AS and

Previous GAAD have heen recognised directly in equity {retained earnings cr avother apprepriate category of equity). This note

explains the adjustents

made by the Ceupany in restating its Provious GALD financial statements, including the Bolance Sheetas at April 1 2618 and tive subsequent financial

Optional Exemptions from retrospective application

Ind AS 101 allows first time adopters certain exemptions friom retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The Com

apply tie following ontional exemptions fro u retrospective application of Ind AS:

pany has clected to

a).  Deemed cost fur Propenty, Plant and Eguipmest. Intangible Assets and Investmerts nrepevties )
The Company has elected to tacasure aill its property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investmients properties at the Previous GAAP carrying
amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS.
Investments in subsidiavie:

b)

The company has prepared opening Balance Sheet as per Ind AS as of April 03
is required by Ind AS, derecognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted to be r

to Ind AS.

to Ind AS as required, and applying Ind AS to ineasure the recognised assets and liabilities.

Reconciliation of balance sheet (including equity) as previously reported under IGAAP to Ind AS

“The Comyany has elected to measure its investiaents in subsidiaries at the Previous GAAP carrying amount as its dezmed cost en the date

of transition

, 2018 (transition date) by recognising all assets and liabilities whose recognition
scognised by Ind AS, reclassifying iteins from Previous GAAP

As at 1stApril 2018 As at 315t March 2019
Previous GAAP| Adjustment Ind AS Previous GAAP Adjustment Ind A8
ASSETS
1 Finaucial Assets
(a) |Casli & cash cquivalents 37,214.74 - 37,214.74 9,191.77 - 9,191.77
(b} |Bank balances other than Casl & cash 1.14,847.57 - 1,14,847.57 1,21,948.34 - 1,21,943.34
eanivalents
() |Receivanles
- Other Receivabies = 4.30 - 4.30 458.01 - 458.01
(d} {Loans (refer note i and i) 10,55,725.97 (37,343.30) 16,18,382.67 18,05,093.75 (44,269.00) 17.64,624.75
(e) |Investments 6,41,37943 24,81,592.92 31,22,972.35 6,37,438.19 26,00,446.30 32,37,881.49
(f) |Other financial assets 4,828.47 - 4,828.47 4,553.44 - 4,553.44
2 |Non-financial Assets
{a) |Cwrrent tax assets {Net) 25,419.95 - 25,419.9% 30,726.28 - 30,726.28
(b) [Investment property (refer vii) 6,61,086.91 - 6,61,086.91 6,61,086.91 (11,018,12) 6,50,008.79
{c) |Property, plant and equipments (refer vii) 530.37 - 530.37 53037 - 530,57
{d) {Dther non-financial assets ' - - - 20,0060.00 - 2000009
Total Asscts 141,037.71 | 24/44,249.62 | 55,65,2087.35 | 32,95,027.06 | 25,45159.1F | 5840,186.23
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1 |Financial Liabilities
(a) |Borrowings {other than Debt Securities) 8,37,836.51 - 8,37,830.51 9,15,456.82 - 9,15,456.82
(b) {Other financial habilities 7,050.02 - 7.0590.02 8,356.53 - 8,356.53
2 |Non-Financial Liabilittes
(a) |Current tax liabilities (Net) 25,139.31 (4,139.31) 21,000.00 2119867 (4,572.73) 16,625.9-4
(b) {Deferred tay fizbilities (Net) (847.653 €,16,210.51 6,15,362.8¢ (750.16) 6,41,71€.53 6,40,936.37
{c} Other non-financial liabilities 8,817.75 - 8,817.7¢ 9,642.90 - 4,642.90
EQUTTY
(a) |Equity share capital 10,00,060.00 . - 10,00,060.00 10,0G,660.00 - 10,00,060.60
(b) |Other cquity 12,62,981.77 | 1832,17842 | 30,95160.16 13,41,992.30 19,08,015.38 | 32,49,107.68
Toxal Liabilities and Equity 37,41,037.71 | 24,44,249.62 | 55,85,287.33 32,95,027.06 25,45,159.18 | 58,40,186.24

P é@:ﬁ‘:ﬁ o
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Jecanciliation Statement of Profit and Loss as previously reported under IGAAP to Iud AS

Adjustment made during the transition to IND AS

For the year cnded 3Tst March 2019 ]
Previous GAAP Adjustinent Ind AS
1
’ 2,12,314.93 - 2,12,31493
Otuer income 5,850.00 - 5,850.00
Total income 2,18,164.93 - 2,18,164.93
2 {Expenses:
Finance costs 91,823.34 - 91,823.34
Impairment of financial instruments 43342 6,492.28 6,925.70
Empleyee benetits exizense 12,840.00 - 12,840.00
Depreciation and emortization - 11,018.12 11,018.12
Other expense 14,352.88 1,065.51 19,418,(3‘9
Total exp.enses 1,23,449.61 18,575.91 1,42,025.55
(V) yPreit/ (loss) belore exceptional items and tax (111-iV) 94,715.29 (18,575.91) 76,139.38
(VI} JEzce ptional items - . )
3 |Profit/(loss) hefore tas
4 |Tax Expense: *
Current tax 16,625.94 16,625.94
Short/(Excess) provision of income tax for earlier years (88.67) (88 67)
Deferred tax liability /(assets) {refer note vi) 67.49 4,675.18 (4,607.69)
Total Tax expense 16,604.76 4,675.18 11,929.58
5 |[Profit / (loss} fur the period from continuing operations 78,110.53 (13,900.73) 64,209.80
6 |Other Comprenensive Income
Iteras that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Change in fair value of equity instruments(Un-quoted) through OCI - 1,19,918.89 1,19,918.89
Tax impact on above - 30,181.20 30,181.20
Other Comprehensive Income - 89,737.69 8§9,737.69
7 [Total Comprehensive Income for the period 78,110.53 75,836.96 1,53,947.49
TFransition to Ind AS - Reconciliations
Reconciliatien of Equity
. Asat 3TstMarch| Asat Ist Aprii
Particulars 2019 2018
fetal Equity as per [GAAP 23,41,152.30 1 22,63,041.77
Adjustinent made during the transition to IND A8
a) {ECL Adjustment on Financial instruments measured at Amortized cost (ii) (39.696.27) (33,202.9%)
by [Fair value of Investments . 26 00,446.30 24,81,592.92
¢) [Investment property valuation as per Ind AS 16 & 40 {11,018.12)
d1 D7l onthe above adjustment (641,71653)]  (616,210.51)
Total Impact due to Ind AS transition on April 1, 2018 19,08,015.38 18,32.178.42
Total Equity as per Ind AS as at 1st April, 2018 42,49,167.62 | 40,95,220.19
Reconciliation of Total Comprel ive Income for the year ended March 31, 2019
Particulars B Amount |
Profit after Tax as per GAAP 78,110.53

1 |Loan given to Staff at concessional rate
2 |Bxpected credit loss . (6,492.28)
3 |Depreciation on investment property as per ind AS 16 & 40 (11,018.12)
4 |Fair value of Investments {1,065.51)
7 _{D''A on tie zbove adjustment. 4,675.18
Pro:il after tax as per Ind AS (Before Other Comprebensive incoime) 64,209.80
|Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) 89,737.69
|Total Compreliensive Incomc as per Ind AS 1,53,947.49
Statement of reconciliation of cask flow statement under Ind AS and cashi flow statement renorted under Previous GAAP
Particulars ) Previous GAAP Adjustment Ind AS
Net cash used irr operating activities (A) 67.96 (1,02,550.71)|  (1,02,483.75)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (1,05,711.24) 1.02,551.71 (3,159.53)
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 77,62031 - 77,620.31
Netincrease in cash and cash cquivalents (A+E+C} (28,022.97) 0.02 (28,022.97)
Cash and cash cyuivalents at beginning of the year 37,214.74 - 37,214.74
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year 9,191,77 0.00 9,191.77
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i)

i)

ti)

iv)
Y

vi)

Vi)

viif)

Effective interest rate (E!R) method :

Previous GAAP did not require loans to be recorded uging the EIR method. Under Ind AS, the EIR method calculates the amortised cost of a financial
instrument and ailccated such'interest over the relevant period. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated tuture cash flows (includiig al! fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the EiR, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts} through the expected life of the instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amournt on initial recognition. )

Expected creditloss (ECL) :

Previous GAAP provisions for credit losses were primarily based on RBI guidelines, Under Ind AS, the ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to
arise from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial assets (' life time ECL'), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk
since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12-month ECL

Income recognition on credit-impaired loans :
RBI guidelines required income on NPAs to be 1eversed. Under Ind AS, income continues tc be recogrised on credit impaired loans, by applying the effective
interest rate to the net amortised cost of loans (i.e. net of allowance for loan losses)

Borrowing costs : . v
Previous GAAP did not require amortised cost accounting for liabilities. Under Ind AS, the Company determines the effective interest rate of its borrewings and

records interest expense on that basis.

Employee defined benefit plans : .
Previous GAAP.required actuatial experience adjustments relatiug to defined benefit plans, ie. gratuily to be recorded in the profit and loss account. By
contrast, under Ind AS, the Company recoids such adjustments in OCl if any.

Deferred tax :
Deferred tax effect of all adjustments has been recognised on transition date and during the year ended 31 March 2019

Ind AS 101 exemptions :
The company has used certain available exempticns under Ind AS 161 for first-time adoption, and accordingly has retained the accounting under Previous
GAAP for transactions that eccurred prior to the Ind AS transition date. These optional exemptions relate to property plant and equipment, intangible assets,
investment in subsidiaries.

Cash flow statement :
There are no significant differences in the princip'es used for presenting cash flows between the previous GAAP and Ind AS,
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Disclosure Pursuant to RBi Notification no RBI/2019-20/170 BOR {NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20

AssetClassification as per RBl]  Asset Gross Carvying |Loss Allowances| Net Carrying Provisions Difference
Norms classificatio| Amount as per | (Provisions] as Amount required as | between Ind AS
n as per Ind Ind A& required under per IRACP 109 provisions
AS 109 Ind AS 109 norms and IRACP norms
1 2 3 4 (5=3-4) 6 (7=4-6)
Performing assets
Stage 1 15,64,709.24 27,695.36 15,37,013.88 3,911.77 23,783.59
Standard Stage 2 ) ) . R .
Subtotal . 15,64,709.24 27,695.36 15,37,013.38 3,911.77 23,783.59
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 1,48,821.90 74,410.95 1,48,821.90 14,882.19 59,528.76
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 - -
1 te 3 years Stage 3 - - - N
More than 3 years Stage 3 - ¢ - - §
Subtotal for doubt{ul 1,48,821.90 74,410.95 1,48,821.90 14,882.19 59,528.76
Loss - -
Subtotal for NFA 1,48,821.90 74,410.95 1,48,821.90 14,882.19 1,19,057.52
Other items such as guarantees,| Stage 1 - - - - -
loan commitments, etc. which) Stage 2 - - - - -
are in the scope of Ind AS 109
but not covered under current
Income  Recognition, Asset
Classification and Previsioning
(IRACP\ norms Stage 3 - - - - y
Subtotal - - - -
Stage 1 15,64,709.24 27,695.36 15,37,013.88 3,911.77 23,783.59
Total Stage 2 _ - - - - -
Stage 3 1,48,821.90 74,410.95 74,410.95 14,882.19 59,528.76
Total 17,13,531.14 1,02,106.31 16,11,424.83 18,793.96 83,312.35
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The outbreak of COVID 19 pandemic and consequent lockdown partially impacted the operation of the company since
the last week of the March 2020. In relation to COVID-19, judgments and assumptions include the extent and duration of
the pandemic, the impacts of actions of governments.and other authorities, and the responses of businesses and
consumers in different industries. While the methodologies and assumptions applied in the impairment loss aliowance
calculations remained unchanged from those applied prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company has separately
incorporated estimates, assumptions and judgments specific to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic based on early
indicators of and delayed payments metrics observed along with an estimation of potential stress on probability of
defaults and exposure at defaults. The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Company’s impairment
Joss allowance on assets and future results will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and the
Company will continue to closely monitor the same,

The Financial Statements have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Beard of Directors at its
meeting held on 25th August, 2020

There have been no ever.tsalter the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.

The company is not required to spend any amount on account of Corporate Socia! Responsibilities activities as per the
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

As per our report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors

For Nagar Goel & Chawla ' ’ For MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDINGS LTD
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[Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a Non Banking Financial Company as required in terms of paragraph 18 of Non- -Banking
¥inancizi Company - Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016}

{LIABILITIES SIDE

1 Loans and advances availed by the NBFC inclusive of
interest accrued thereon but not naid:.

Amount
Outstanding

Amount Overdue

a. ‘Debentures (other than falling within the meaning of public
- Secured
- linsecured

Deferred Credits

Term Loans

Inter-corperatz loans and borrowings

Comrmercia! Paper

Public Deposits (Refer note 1 below]

Gther Loans

™o an T

n

9,81,369.72

ASSET SIDE

2 Break up of Loans and Advances including bills
receivables fother than those inciuded in(4) belowl:

Amount
Qutstandine

a. Secured
b. Unsecured

16,11,424.83

3 Break up of Leased Assets and stocks on hire and other
asssts counting towards AEC activities

Amount
Qutstanding

i. Lease Assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
a. Finance Lease
b. Operating Lease

ii. Stocks on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
a. Assets on hire
b. Repossessed Assets

iii. Otier Loans counting towards AFC activities:
4. Loans where assets have been repossessed
b, Loans other than (a) above

4 Break up of Investments:
Cuwrrent Investments
1. Quoted
i. Shares - Equity
- Preference
ii. Debentures and Bonds
iii. Units of mutual funds
iv. Government Securities
v. Others
2. Unquoted
i. Shares - Equity
- Preference
ii. Debentures and Bonds
iii. Units of mutual funds
iv. Government Securities
v. Others
Long Term Investments
1. Quoted
1. Shares - Equity
- Preference
ii. Debentures and Bonds
jii. Units of mutual funds
iv. Goverrment Securities
v. Others
2. Unquoted
i. Shares - Equity
- Preference
il. Debentures and Bonds
iii. Units of mutval funds
iv. Governmernt Securities
v. Others

Amount

7,736.15

5,81,957.82
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- 5 - Borrower group-wise classification of alf leased assets, stock on hire and loans and advances (Refer note Z below):
Catcgory ' Amount net of provision
Secured Unsecured: Total
1 Related Parties™?
a. Scbeidiaries - - -
b. Companies in the same group - Co -
¢. Other related parties - 1,00,752.45 1,00,752.45
2 Other than related parties - 15,10,672.38 15,10,672.38
Total - 16,11,424.83 16,11,424.83
6 Investor group-wisc classification of 21l investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted
and unquoted): (Refer note 3 below)
Category Market Value/ Book Value (Net
Break up of fair of Provisions)

L3

valpe orr NAY

1 Related Parties**
a. Subsidiaries
b. Companies in the same group
¢. Other related parties

26,86,495.69

26,86,495.69

2 Other than related parties 5,89,693.97 5,89,693.97
Total 32,76,189.66 32,76,189.66
** As per Accounting Standard issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAT’).
Amournt

7 Other information
i. Gross Non-Performing Assets
a. Related Parties
b. Other than related parties
il. NetNon-Performing Assets
a. Related Parties -
h. Other than related parties 74,410.95
iii. Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt -

1,48,821.90

Notes:
1 As defined in paragraph 2(1)(xii) of the Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits (Reserve Bank)

Birections, 1998.

2 Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in the Non-Baniking Financial Company - Non Systemically Important
Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

3 All Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by the Institute of Ghartered Accountants of India ('ICAL') are
applicable including for valuation of investments and other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction of debts. However,
market value in respect of quoted investments and break up/ fair value/ NAV in respect of unquceted investments should be
disclosed irrespective of whether they are classified as long term or current in category 4 above.
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